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CERTIFICATE OF BOARD 

Fredericksburg Independent School District 
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We, the undersigned, ce1tify 71e attached annual financial reports of the above-named school district were 
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Board of Trustees of such school district on the 13 11
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(attach list as necessary) 



NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Fredericksburg, Texas 78624 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Fredericksburg Independent School District as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2023, and the relaled notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Fredericksburg 
Independent School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements refen-ed to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the 
Fredericksburg Independent School District, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
the Fredericksburg Independent School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, irt accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Mtmagemelll for the Fl11a11cial Stute111e11ts 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fredericksburg Lndependent School District's ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currenlly known 
info1mation that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Atulltor's Respo11slhllltlesfor the All{/it of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or e1Tor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government A udlting Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

TEL: 830 997 3348 EMAIL: info@nb-cpa.com 
P.O. Box 874 • 512 S Adams Street, Fredericksburg, TX 78624 
MEMBER .AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & TEXAS SOCIETY OF CPAs 
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of int@mal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, 
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed, 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Fredericksburg Independent School District's ability Lo continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required Lo communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit 

Req1tired Supplementary biformatio11 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis and budgetary comparison information, schedule of the district's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, schedule of the district's contributions, schedule of the district's proportionate share of the OPEB liability 
and the schedule of the district contributions for other post-employment benefits on pages 5-16 and 50-57 be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility of management and, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infom1ation for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Supplemeltf{lty /11Jormmio1t 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Fredericksburg Independent School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Reqitirementsfor Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The infonnation 
has been subjected Lo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 11nancial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stares of America. 
In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The Texas Education Agency requires school districts to include certain information in the Annual Financial and 
Compliance Report in confonnity with laws and regulations of the State of Texas. This information is in Exhibits 
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identified in the Table of Contents as J-1 through J-4. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Sf(ludards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November I 0, 2023, on our 
consideration of the Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fredericksburg 
Independent School District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
ofan audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Fredericksburg Independent 
School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

~#1"t<~A/ ~ 8&-dM, ? Cl 
NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 
Fredericksburg, Texas 
November I 0, 2023 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fredericksburg ISD 

This section of the Fredericksburg Independent School DisLrict's annual financial report presents FISD Administration's discussion 
and analysis of the District's financial pe1·forma11ce during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Please read this narrative overview 
and analysis of !he financial activities of the District in conjunction with the District' s financial statements, which follow this 
section. 

DISTRICT JllGHLIGHTS 

The Fredericksburg Independent School DistricL (FISD) is located in central Texas in the Texas Hill Country area. Following arc 
some districl highlights: 

• FISD Vision: Inspiring Excellence 
• FISD Mission: To guide students to be the best version of themselves and achieve unlimited potentiaL 
• In Predericksburg ISD we believe: 

o Students will be challenged and engaged 11s creative and collaborative problem solvers with academic 
confidence. 

o Parents and f'a111ilies are engaged partners who both need and provide appropriate levels of support and good 
communication so llm! all partners can be accountable. 

o Teachers build individualized relationships with students and families lo strengthen academic confidence, 
inspire an ongoing desire to learn and to be a positive, contributing member of society. 

o Campus Leaders are accountable to the community, stilff, and students through active engagement, academic 
confidence, and team driven results. 

o The Superintendent and Central Office Stul'f have a supportive role in the district, to facilitate, communicate, 
cvalu11lc. 11nd monitor all aspects of lhc district's goals. 

o The School Board is the voice of the community by demonstrating accountability, instiLuling checks and 
balances, proviclirtg govemance oversight, and bridging the gap between the cQmmunity and the district. 

• FISD Goals 
o High Performing Students 
o Highly Engaged Stoff 
o Strong Community Pnrlncrships 
o Strategic Resource Management 

• The Texas Education Agency (TEA) rated PISD as a C (78) on the A - F Accountability scale in 2022. This was the 
first rating given by TEA since 2019 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

• FISD has one high school serving grades 9 through 12. There is one middle s<:hool serving grades 6 through 8. There is 
one large elementary school in the city serving grades 2 through 5 and one small rural elementary school that serves 
grades K through 5. A primary school serves grade Pre-K through grade l . Additionally, there is one alternative high 
school. 

• The enrollment of the district remained relatively stable from 2021-2022. Enrollment approximated 3, I 00. 
• PJSD administrative ofl1ccs is located in the city of fredericksburg in Gillespie County. The population of the city in 

2022 per the U.S. Census was 11 ,257, which is nearly 41 % oflhe population or the entire county of7.7,477. 
• FISD has approximately 500 employees that handle school district business in more than 606,000 square feet on nearly 

177 acres. 
• The FISD is located mainly in Gillespie County bu! also has a small amount of property that extends into Blnnco and 

Kendall counties. 
• The land urea of the city is only 9.25 square miles, but the square miles that the school district serves is 758. 
• The district is considered a wealthy school district based on property wealth per student accordi1lg to the Texas Education 

Agency. Therefore, Lhe district sent over $23.6 million of local property tax revenue to the state of Texas to fund other 
school districts in the current fiscal year. This amounted to over 40% of local property tax revenue sent out of the district, 
however, 59.98% of the students in the district qualified as Economically Disadvantaged. 

• According to the U.S. Census, the median household income was $54,771 annually as compared to the state average of 
$67,321. However, the median home value was $317,600 in Fredericksburg, but only $202,600 in the state as a whole. 

• The population of the city is 76% Anglo and 21% Hispanic, yet the population of the school district stl1dents was 46% 
Anglo. 51 % Hispanic, and 3% various other. 

• The oldest school building in use in the district was built in 1875 and the newest was built in 1994. The districl continues 
to renovate older buildings and build additions to existing facilities. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Fredericksburg 15D 

• In May 2022, the voters of fredericksburg Independent School District approved a $82,000,000 bond issue. This bond 
issue is the biggest bond issuance in the history of the District, and will be utilized to build a new building for 
Fredericksburg Middle School at a new site, Career Technical additions and renovations at Predericksburg I Iigh School, 
Inclusive playground additions at our elementary & primary campuses, outdoor restrooms at Primary School, Athletic 
improvements, siilety, security, and technology updates, and new buses. The estimated completion date for the new Middle 
School campus is August 2025. 

• The District's total net position for governmental activities increased by $6,528,309 during 2022-2023 to $37,733,751 at 
June 30, 2023 (Exhibits A-1 and B-1 ). 

• The General fund reported nr1 ending rund balance this year of $18.487,574 (Exhibits c.1 and C·3), which is an increase 
of$2,660,602. This increase is mainly due to vacancies unanticipated during the year along with long lead times on supplies 
and equipment. 

• Since its inception, for the 21st year in a row, FISD earned a rating of Passed by the Texas Education Agency (TEA) under 
its Financial Integrity Rating System of Texas (FIRST). Superior Achievement is the highest rating possible and is based 
on criteria used to determine the overall financinl health and stability of school districts throughout Texas. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of four pa11s 
• !Vhrnagement's Discussion and Analysis (this section) 
• Basic Flnancl:ll Statements 
• Required Supplementary Information 
• Combining statements for non-major governmental funds (optional). 

Figure A-I below identifies the required components of the District's Annual Financial Report. 

Figur·e A-1 Required Components of the District's Annual Financial Report 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District: 

Fredericksburg ISD 

• The first two statements (Exhibits A-1 and B-1) arc goverm11ent-wide jimmcinl statements that provide both long-term 
and short-term information about the District's overall financial status. These provide information about the activities of 
the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District's property and debt obligations and other fin.incial 
matters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar to the financial reports of a business 
enterprise. 

• The remaining statements arcft111dji11n11cinl sllltements that focus on individual parts of the government. reporting the 
District's operation~ in more detail than the government-wide statements, 

Fund financial statements may include governmental funds statements, proprietary fund statements, and fiduciary fund statements. 

• T/11: goven11nenfl1lft11uls sta tements tell how general government services were lin.inced in the short term as well as what 
remains for future spending. They reflect the flow of current financial resources, and supply the basis for tax levies nod 
the appropriations budget. 

• Proprietary fund stmenumu offer sho11-term and long-term financial information about the activities the government 
operates like businesses. 

• Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the District acts solely as a 
trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside the district. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements with narrative and 
provide additional data needed for full disclosure in the government-wide statements or the fund financial statements. The section 
of the report containi11g combining statements is not required by the Texas Education Agency (TEA) but contains detailed 
information about the District's individual funds. 

The statements are fo llowed by a section of required supplementary information tilled TEA Required Schedules that further 
explains and supports the information in the financial statements. The sections labeled TEA Required Schedules and Federal 
Awards Section contnin data used by monitoring or regulatory agencies for assurnnce that the District is using funds supplied in 
compliance with the tcnns of grants it receives. 

Govenunent-wide Financial Statements - Reporting the District as a Whole 

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting rnethods similar to those used 
by private-secto1· companies, The Statement of Net Position includes all of the government's assets and liabil ities. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses nre accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The two government-wide stateme11ts report the District's net position and how they have changed. Net position (the difference 
between the District's assets and liabilities) is one way to measure the District's financial health. Over time, increases or decreases 
in the District's net position are ,1n indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. To assess 
the overall health of the District, one needs lo consider itdditional non-linnncial factors such as changes in the Oistricrs tax base, 
changes in the District's average daily attendance and the condition of District facilities. 

Most of the Districfs basic services such as instruction, extracurricular activities, curriculum, staff development, health services 
and general administration are included in the government-wide financial statements. Prope11y taxes and grants finance most of 
these activities. 

Fund Financial Statements - Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most signilicanl funds-not the District as a 
whole. Funds arc accounting devices that the District uses to keep track of specitic sources of funding and spending for particular 
purposes. Laws and contracts require the District to establish some funds. Other funds, such as Catnpus Activity funds, are set 
up to help the District manage and control money for pnrticular purposes. 

All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds. and liducinry funds: 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fredericksburg ISD 

• Governmental.funds-Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds. which focus on how cash, 
and other financial assets that can readily be converted lo cnsh, now in and oul nnd the balances left al year-end that are 
available for spending. Con~equenlly, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can he spent in the near future to finance the District's 
programs. We provide additional information at the bottom or the govemmental funds statement that explains lhe 
relationship (or differences) between them because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of 
the government-wide statemenls. 

• Proprietmy jimds-These funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements. only 
in more detail. Enterprise funds a1·e used to report the saine functions presented as business-type activities in the 
govemmenl-wide financial stnternents. The District has no business-type activities or enterprise l\mds. The second lype 
of proprietary fund is the internal service fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used lo accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the val'ious functions. At year end, the District has no Internal Service Funds. 

• FiduciaiJ' fimds-The District is the trustee, or llduciury, for certain funds. Due to II trust arrnngc,ncnt, the District is 
responsible for assets that can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The District is responsible for ensuring that the 
assets reported in these funds are used Fot their intended purposes. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in 
a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. We exclude these 
activities from the District's government-wide financial statements because the Distl'ict cannot use these assets to finance 
its operations. Fiduciary funds for the District include scholarship and student activity funds. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

All of the District's restricted net position represents proceeds from tax collections that are restricted for bond debt payment and 
capital projects ond other rninor purposes. 

Unrestricted net position retlects a deficit created by a prior period adjustmenl resulting from the implementation of OASB 75 in 
fiscal year 2018 for OPEB. Although the District reports a deficit, the deficit is primarily due to reporting the District's proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liability. The total district liability is reported in the governmental activities; however. the actual liability 
does not require the use of cun·ent resources al the fund level, which results in a tirning difference since the TRS-Ca1·e plan is 
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The District has made all contractually required contributions as noted in the 
required supplementary information and has sufficient fund balance to meet the District's ongoing obligations to students and 
credilors. 

Table A-I provides detail on lhe District's combined net position, which was $37,733,751 on June 30, 2023. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District cE, Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fredericksburg 1c;D 

Table A-1 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Changes in Net Position 

2022 / 2023 2021 / 2022 % Ch11nge 

Current Assets: 
Cash nncl c!!Sh equivalents $ 127,193,006 $ 39,660, 110 220,71% 

Due from Other Govemmcnts $ 2,074,85 I $ 2,310,229 -l0.19% 

Receivables/Supplies $ 3.205,835 $ 2,958,249 8.37% 

Toinl Current Assets $ 132.473.692 $ 44,928.588 194.85% 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Prepayments $ 74.148 $ 7.920 836,21% 

Total Noncurrcnt Assets $ 74,148 $ 7,920 836.21% 

Capital Assets: 
Land and Buildings $ 40,794,488 $ 42,495,032 -4.00% 

Furniture & Equipment $ 1,150,038 $ 1,248,428 •7,88% 

Right-to-Use Le11scd Assets $ 294,660 $ 423,228 -:30.38% 

SBIT A Assets $ 178,554 $ n/a 

Constrnction in Progress $ 6,171,254 $ 144,052 4184.05% 

Total Noncurtent Assets $ 48.588,994 $ 44.310.740 9.66% 

Tolal Assets s 181,136,834 s 89:2471248 102.96% 

Dc(erred Outnows or Resources: 
Deferred uulflo,vs-Othc::r Posi Rctirc::rnc::nL Rcnefits $ 1,728,649 $ 1,688,280 2.39% 

Deforred outnows-TRS Pension $ 4 647,679 $ 2.513,677 84.90% 

Total Deferred Outnows of Resources $ 6 376328 $ 4:201957 51.75% 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable und Accrued linbilitics $ 6, 186,410 $ 3,777,389 63.77% 

Due to OU1er Govetmne,lls $ 23,905,457 $ 18,689,370 27.91% 

Bonds Payable-current $ 3,265,647 $ 1,392,307 134.55% 

Deferred/Unearned Revenue $ 147.010 $ 15.235 864.95% 

Total Current Liabilities $ 33 .. 504.524 $ 23,874,301 40.34% 

Noncurrcnl Linbililics: 

Bonds Payable-due in more thon Drle year $ 87,706,078 $ 11 ,116,855 688.95% 

Net Pension Liability (District share) $ 10.394,666 $ 4,130,405 151 .66% 

Net OPEB Liability (District's Share) $ 6,027.479 $ 9,537,172 -36.80% 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 104 128.223 $ 24.784,432 320.14% 

Tr,tnl Liabilities $ 1371632,747 $ 48,658,733 182.85% 

Deferred Innows of Resources: 

Deferred Inflow Lease Receivable $ I, 172,834 $ 1,234,291 -4,98% 

Deforred lnnows-TRS Pensi(m $ 932,646 $ 4,730,102 -80.28% 

Deferred lnnows-OPEB $ I0,041,184 $ 7,620,636 31.76% 

Total Deferred lntlows of Resources $ 12 146 664 $ 13.585.030 -10.59% 

Net rosltlon: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 35,259,941 $ 31 ,801,578 10.87% 

Restricted for Federal and State Programs $ 1,530,957 $ 1,207,643 26.77% 

Restricted for Debt Service $ 2,554,085 $ 2,141,397 19.27% 

Restricted for Capital Projects $ $ 138,033 -100.00% 

Restricted for Campus Activities $ $ 302,429 -100.00% 

Unrestricted $ (1 161 11232! $ (4 ,385,638) -63.26% 

Total Net Position s 37,733,751 s 31,205,442 20.92% 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fredericksburg 15□ 

The District's total 1·evenues were $65,5 million (Exhibit C-3), A significant portion (78%) of the District's revenue comes from 
local laxes. 

Charges for Svcs 
4% 

Federal Aid---..,,, 
8% / 

State Aid_ 
5% 

Misc. Local 
6% ~ 

FigureA-2 
Sources of Revenue 

Taxes 
77% 

House Bill 3, which passi:d during the 86th legislative session in 2019, was a sweeping and historic school finance bill. House Bill 
3 required lhal a district's M&O rate be reduced by 7% and provided for autumntic lax rate reductions starting in the second year 
if property value grows by more than 2.5% per year (no district can be compressed more than 10% lower than the highest M&O 
rate in the State). This caused the majority or districts to have a compressed rate of $0.93 plus up to four additional pennies for 
their 2019-2020 lax rate, and resulted in FlSD's tax rate to drop to $0.9491 for 2020-2021. The rate dropped again by 7.71 cents 
to $0.872 in 2021-2022, and by 1.74 cents to $0,8546 in 2022-2023 due to property value increases in the District. 

Other notable changes included increasing the Ba..~ic Allotment (BA) by $1,020, a requirement for structured teacher pay increases 
in any year the BA is increased, establishing ti few new allotments, removing others, and increasing the weights of special education, 
compensatory education, and allowing weights to also be considered for Career & Technical classes in grades 7-8. 

There were several other modifications made in order tu focus on learning and improving student outcomes better. and considering 
student need in the funding formulas. 

Governmental Activities 

The combined tax rate for 2022-2023 decreased from the prior year by $.0174 to $0.9608. 
• The tax rate for the Gcncrnl Operating Fund decreased from the prior year by $0.0174 lo $0.8546 per$ I 00 or vnluation. 
• The Debt Service portion of the tax rate was the same as in the prior year al $0.1062. 

The total cost of aU programs and services was $69.6 million (Exhibit B-1 ). Of these costs, 46% arc for instructional and student 
support services and 34% paid to educate students from another district under Recapture ruling. Other costs total 20%. 

The amount d1at our taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes was $59 million (87%). Costs paid by those who 
directly benefited from the programs totaled $3.2 million (5%) State and Federnl Grants and Contributions covered $5.5 million 
(8%) of these costs. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Table A-2 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Changes in Net Position 

2022/2023 2021 12022 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services $ 3,202,676 $ 2,641,425 
Operating Grants & Contributions $ 5,480, 181 $ 6,255,670 

General Revenues: 

Property Taxes $58,871 ,137 $ 51,442,499 

State Aid • Formula Grunts $ 1,806,066 $ 1,5 16,415 
Grants & Contributions-not restricted $ l ,531 , I04 $ 235,432 

Investment Earnings $ 4,604,533 $ 126,570 
Other $ 633,308 $ 778,691 

Total Revenues $ 76,129,005 $ 62.996.702 

Expenses: 

Instrnction & Related Services $ 2 1.271,750 $ 19,861.654 

Instructional & School Leadership $ 3,097,669 $ 2,570,803 

Student Support Services $ 7,399,06 1 $ 6,701, 145 

General Administrative $ l,489, I62 $ 1,492,027 

Plant Support Services $ 5,257,520 $ 4,639,777 
Ancillary Services $ 482,675 $ 473,599 

Debt Service $ 4, 114,589 $ 341 ,331 

Facilities Acquisition & Construction $ 887,749 $ 147,120 

Contracted Instructional Services $ 23,706,066 $ 17,897,875 

Inter-governmental charges $ 1.894 455 $ I 759 156 

Total Expenses $ 69,600,696 $ 55,884.487 

Increase (Decreuse) in Net Position $ 6,528,309 $ 7, 112,2 15 

Net Position Beginning $ 31,205.442 $ 24,093,227 

Net Position Ending $37,733,751 $ 31,205,442 

Fredericksburg ISD 

% 
Change 

21.25% 
- 12.40% 

14.44% 
19,10%, 

550.34% 

3537.93% 

-18.67% 

20.85% 

7.10% 

20.49% 

10.41% 

-0.19% 

13.3 1% 
1.92% 

1105.45% 

503.42% 
32.45% 

7.69% 

i4.54% 

-24.34% 

29.52% 

15.32% 

Table A-3 below presents the cost of each of the District's largest functions as well as each function's net cost (total cost less fees 
generated hy the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded by state revenues as well as local tax 
dollnrs. The cost of all governmental activities this year was $69.6 million (Exhibit B-1 ). 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Table A-3 

Fredericksburg 15D 

Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Net Cost of Selected District Functions 

Instruction 

School Leadership 

ExtnVCo-Curricu lar 

General Administration 

f>lant Maintenance & Operations 

Debt Service - Interest & Charges 

Contracted Instructional Services 

Recapture 
30% 

Totnl Cost Net Cost 
% 

2022/2023 2021/2022 Chnnge 2022/2023 2021/2022 

$21,271,750 $ 19,861,654 7.10% $18, 117,592 $ 17,017,885 

$ 3,097,669 $ 2,570,803 20.49% $ 3,060,930 $ 2,465,701 

$ 1,922,676 $ 1,891.520 1.65% $ 1.421.981 $ 1,326,790 

$ 1,489,162 $ 1,492.027 -0, 19% $ 1,486,982 $ 1,472,854 

$ 5,257,520 $ 4,639,777 13.3 1% $ 5,166,285 $ 4,452,542 

$ 4, 114,589 $ 341,331 1105.45% $ 4,110,578 $ 341,331 

$ 23,706,066 $ 17.897,875 32.45% 

Inter-gov Charges 
2% 

Debt Service 
9% 

Ancillary 
1% 

$23,706,066 $ 17,897,875 

Figure .-1-3 
E-'-··_p en diLures 

Instruction 
26% 

chool Leadership 
4% 

Student Support 
9% 

Administrative 
Plant Support 2% 

7% 

The District's total expenditures were $78,917,396 (Exhibit C-3). Note that the direct instructional percentage increases from 26% 
to 52% when the Recapture payment to other school districts and TEA and Debi Service and Construction expenditures are removed 
from the calculation. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 

Revenues from nil govi;rnmentul fund typi;s totuled $76.8 million, an increase of$11.3 million, .ind the recapture payment increased 
by approximately $5.8 million, providing a net increase of approximately $5.5 million, or an 11.6% increase. Student enrollment 
decreased by 26, or less than 1% mainly due to stabilization post-coronavirus pnndemic, which matched initial estimates. Among 
other increased costs. a 7.7% market median raise was provided to teaching staff, and a 4% midpoint raise was provided to all other 
employees. Payroll costs comprise about 80% of the district's operating expenditures. 
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% 
Change 
6.46% 
24.14% 

7.17% 

0.96% 

16.03% 

1104.28% 

32.45% 



Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Fredericksburg ISD 

Over the course of the year, the District revises its budget month ly as needed. General Fund actual expenditures were $2.8 million 
below final budget amounts (Exhibit G-1 ). 

The most significant positive variances resulted fro1n unf1lled stufl1ng positions during the year. Staffi11g is budgeted for full 
employment of all positions during the year, however, since the pandemic, full staffing has been difficult to obtain. Budget amounts 
for vacant positions throughout the year are not adjusted in the budget since they are expected to be tilled by the next budget cycle. 
Spending was controlled due to the strict budget system the school district utilizes. 

Resources avai lable were slightly less than the llnal budgeted amount. This was mainly due to less state revenue earned than 
anticipated. 

School Nutrition Fund Highlights 

On December I, 2007, in fiscal 2007-2008, the District became a self-operated, self-sustaining School Nutrition Program. Since 
that time, the District Cully serves the school nutrition needs of FISD students. The School Nutrition Fund ended with a positive 
fund balance of $1 ,562,688 for the fiscal year (sec Exhibit 1-1-1, 1-1-2. and J-2). Regulations indicate that the level of net cash 
resources not exceed three months' average expenditures in the School Nutrition Program. At year end, the School Nutrition 
Program fund balance does not fall within the allowable level. As such, rISD has taken steps to reduce its net ca~h resources with 
a plan to improve the quality of the school nutrition program by purchasing needed supplies and equipment during 2023-2024. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the encl or the fiscal year, the District had cumulatively invested $48. 1 rnillion in a broad range of capital assets, including land, 
equipment, bui ldings, and vehicles. (Sec Table A-4 and Note III, F) This amount represents a net increase (including additions and 
deductions) of approximately $4.2 million over the prior year. 

Table A-4 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Capital Assets 
(Net of accumulated depreciation) 

Governmental Activities 
2022/2023 2021/2022 

Land $ 9,034,448 $ 8,674,534 

Building & Improvements $ 74,054,104 $ 73,566,326 

Equipment $ 12,014,596 $ 12, I 03,424 
Construction in Progress $ 6,171,254 $ 144,052 

Totals at historical cost $ 101 ,274.402 $ 94,488.336 

Total Accumulated Depreciation $ (53 , 1582622) $( 5016001824} 

Net Capital Assets $ 48, 115.780 $ 43,887,5 12 
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% Change 
4.15% 

0.66% 
-0.73% 

4184,05% 

7. 18% 

5.05% 

9.63% 



Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Long Term Debt 

~ 
Fredericksburg 1so 

At year-end the District had $85,720,000 in bonds outstanding as shown in Table A-5 and on Exhibit A-1 . During 2022-2023, the 
2022 School Tax Bonds of$77,820,000 were issued. More detailed infomrntion about the District's debt is presented in the Notes 
Ill, G to the financial statements. 

Table A-5 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Long Term Debt 

¾ 
2022/2023 2021/2022 change 

$ 85,720,000 $ 12,070,000 610. 19% 

Bond Ratings 

The District' s bonds 
presently carry "AAA" 
ratings with an underlying 
rating from Moody' s 
Investors Service of"Aa2". 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The District's budg1.:l for the next year 2023- 2024 was ndopted on June 19, 2023. The following factors were considered by the 
Board in adopting the budget for 2023- 2024: 

Revenues 

• The General Operaiing Fund revenue budget was approved for just under $62 million, but ametlded to be just over $56 
million after adju~tments were made to budgeted prnperty tax revenue as a result of the legislative spcci11l session. 

• For 2023/24, the M&O n1tc dropped from $0.8546 to $0.6692 and the I & S remained at $0.1 062, for a lotal tax rate of 
$0.7754. The 18.54 cent M&O tax rate drop was a result of legislative change.s compressing the rate. 

• The Gillespie County certified tax roll freeze adjusted taxable value totaling $6.1 billion for 2023-2024 for the District 
reflects 11n incr1:11se ofjust owr $ I billion or 20% ove1· the adjusted roll for the prior year. 

• Average Daily Allendancc (ADA) is a component of the state funding formulas For schools in Texas. An increase in 
average daily attendance can result in increa~ed state funding, depending on other factors in !he formula. Changes in 
ADA usually result frorn overall changes tn the student population. Total refined average daily attendance (ADA) 
changes slightly from year to year. From 2019-2020 through 2021.2022, TEA held Districts harmless fo1· partial 
attendance drops due to the pandemic. The below numbers include those adjustments from TEA. 

Fiscal Year Refined ADA Percentaf!e Chanf!e 
2005-2006 2,676 
2006-2007 2,632 - 1.60% 
2007-2008 2.660 + 1.10% 
2008-2009 2,670 + 0.40% 
2009-2010 2,764 + 3.50% 
2010-2011 2.794 + 1.10% 
2011-2012 2,769 - 0.90% 
201 2-2013 2,804 + 1.30% 
2013-2014 2.794 - 0.30% 
2014-2015 2,844 + 1.80% 
2015-2016 2,940 +3.40% 
2016-201 7 2,987 + 1.60% 
2017-2018 2,970 - 0.50% 
2018-2019 2,918 - 1.75% 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

2019-2020 
2020-2021 
2021-2022 
2022-2023 
2023-2024 

Expenditures 

Fredericksburg ISD 

2,949 + 1.06% 
2,827 - 4.14% 
2,862 + 1.24% 
2.830 - 1. 12¾ 
2,80 I est - 1.02% 

• The General Operating fund expenditure budget was approved for just under $62 million, but amended to be just over 
$56 million after 11djustments were made lo the budgckd recapture payment as a result of the legislative special session. 

• There was a 5.4% on average increase for teachers, and a range between 3% • 11 % compensation increase for all other 
employees. 

• The recapture payment to TEA is estimated al $19 million for 2023-2024. This is a decrease of $4.9 million in 
expenditures, and is a result of the legislative special session which significantly compressed maintenance & operations 
tax rates. 

• The District's fund balance position as of June 30, 2023 rcnects funds available to use for one-time or capital 
expenditures. The Board has identified a number of projects for consideration from the available local c11pital projects 
f\ind and committed fund balance in the genernl fund. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the PISD Assistant Superintendent for Business or 
log on at https://www.!1sd.org/our-district/dcpartments/financiill•trnnsp11rcncy. 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRlCT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

!)at:, 

Control 

Codes 

ASSt;TS 
I 11 0 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
1120 Current Investments 
1220 Propeny Ta.xes • Delinquent 
1230 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
1240 Due rrom Other Governments 
1290 Other Receivables, Net 
1300 Inventories 
1410 Prepayments 

Capital As,sc:!s; 
1510 Lnnd 
I 520 Buildings, Net 
1530 Furniture and Equipment, Net 
1550 Right-to-Use Leased Assets, Net 
1553 SBITA Assets, Net 
1580 Construction in Progress 

I 000 Total Assets 

DEFERRED OllTFLOWS OF RESOlJRCES 

1705 Deferred Outnow Related lo TRS Pension 
1706 Deferred Outtlow Related to TRS OPEB 

1700 Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

LIABILITIES 
2 11 O Accounts Payable 
2140 I riterest f'ayable 
2 150 Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 
2180 Due to Other Governments 
2300 Unearned Revenue 

2501 

2502 
2540 
254S 

2000 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Due Within One Year; Loans, Note, Leases. etc. 
Due in More than One Year: 

Bonds, Notes, Loans, Lea~es, etc. 
Net Pension Liability (District's Share) 
Net OPBB Liability (District's Share) 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

2602 Deferred Resource Inflow- Lease Receivable 
260S Deferred Inflow Related to TRS Pension 
2606 Deferred Inflow Related to TRS OPES 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

3200 Net Investment in Capital Assets and Right-to-Use Lease Assets 
Restricted: 

3820 
3850 
3870 
3900 

3000 

Restricted for Federal and State Programs 
Restricted for Debt Service 
Restricted for Campus Activities 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

EXHlBlT A-1 

Primary Govcmmcnl 

Governmental 
Activities 

5,678,272 
121 ,514,734 

1,934,547 
(96,728) 

2.074,85 1 
1,284,797 

83,219 
74, 148 

9.034,448 
31,760,040 

1,150,038 
294,660 
178,554 

6,171 ,254 

181,136,834 

4,647,679 
1,728,649 

6,376,328 

1,279,884 
1,329,048 

318,450 
3,259,028 

23.905.457 
147,010 

3,265,647 

87,706,078 
10.394,666 
6,027,479 

137,632,747 

I , 172,834 
932,646 

10,041,184 

12. 146,664 

35,259,941 

1,530,957 
2.S54,08S 

316,891 
(1,928,123) 

37,733,751 



PREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Data 
Control 

Codes 

Progrnlll Revenues 

Primary Government: 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

11 Instruction 
12 Lnstructiom1I Resources and Media Services 
13 Curriculum and Instructional Stall' Development 
21 lnstl'uctional Leadership 
23 School Leadership 
31 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
32 Social Work Services 
33 I lealth Sel'vices 
34 Student (Pupil) Transportation 
35 Food Services 
36 Extracurricular Activities 
41 General Administration 
51 Facilities Maintenance and Operations 
52 Security and Monitoring Services 
53 Data Processing Services 

• 61 Community Sel'vices 
72 Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debi 
73 Debi Service - Bond Issuance Cost and Fees 
81 Capital Outlay 
91 Contracted Instructional Services Between Schools 
92 lncrcrm:nlal Cosls related to WADA 
93 Payments Related to Shared Services Arrangements 
99 Other Intergovernmental Charges 

Expenses 

$ 20,667,383 
388,514 
215,853 

1,294,202 
1,803,467 
1,964,823 

105,44 1 
421 ,491 

I,115.250 
1.869.380 
1,922,676 
1,489,162 
3,826,594 

722,461 
708,465 
482,675 

3,377,425 
737,164 
887,749 

23,679,066 
27,000 

1,171,07 1 
723,384 

$ 

J 

Charges for 
Services 

734.554 
500,695 

83,146 

225,247 

1,659,034 

$ 

(TP] TOlAL r~1UMARY GOVERNMENT: $ 69,600,696 $ 3,202,676 $ 

Data 
Control General Revenues: 
Codes Taxes: 

MT Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes 
DT Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service 
SF State Aid - f'ormula Grants 
oc Grants and Contributions not Restricted 
IE Investment Earnings 
Ml Miscellaneous Local and Intermediate Revenue 

TR Total General Revenues 

CN Change in Net Position 

NB Net Position • Beginning 

NE Net Position • Ending 

The notes to the financial stntements are an integral part of this statement. 
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4 

Opcrotiiig 
Grants and 

Contributions 

2,928,866 
8S,435 

139,857 
27.121 
9,618 

676,802 
98,495 
38.024 

1,393,622 

2,180 
914 

7,175 

52.423 
4,01 I 

15,638 

5,480. 181 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT B-1 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Chnngcs in Net 
Position 

<, 

Primary Gov. 
Governmental 

Activities 

(17,738,517) 
(303 ,079) 

(75,996) 
( 1.267,081) 
( I, 793,849) 
(1,288,021) 

(6,946) 
(383,467) 

(1,1 15.250) 
258,796 

(1 ,421 ,981) 
(1 ,486,982) 
(3,742,534) 

(7 15,286) 
(708,465) 
(205,005) 

(3,373,414) 
(737,164) 
(887.749) 

(23,679,066) 
(27,000) 
503,601 

(723,384) 

(60,917,839) 

52,374,894 
6,496,243 
1,806,066 
1,531 ,104 
4,604,533 

633,308 

67,446,148 

6,528,309 

31,205,442 

37,733,751 



FREDERICKSBURG fNDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2023 

Data 10 
Control Ganeral 
Codes f\llld 

ASSETS 
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,194,124 $ 
11 20 Investments - Current 41,479, 11 2 
1220 Prope1ty Taxes - Delinquent 1,746,712 
1230 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (87,336) 
1240 Due from Other Governments 701,891 
1260 Due from Other Funds 1,065,329 
1290 Other Receivables 96,136 
1300 Inventories 38,413 
1410 Prepayments 68,793 

1000 Total Assets $ 47,303,174 $ 

LIABILITIES 
21 10 Accounts Payable $ 323,897 $ 
2150 Payi-oll Deductions and Withholdings Payab le 283,272 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 2,453,659 
2170 Due to Other Funds 83,207 
2i80 Due lo Other Governments 23,905,457 
2300 Unearned Revenue 106,732 

2000 Totnl Liabilities 27,156,224 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
260 1 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 1,659,376 

2600 Total Deterred Inflows of Resources 1.659,376 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspi:ndul>le Fun<l Balance: 

3410 ln venlories 38,413 
3430 Prepaid lti:ms 68,793 

Restricted Fund Balance: 
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 
3470 Cap ital Acquisition and Contractural Obligation 
3480 Retirement of Long-Tenn Debt 
)490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 
35 10 Construciion 4,000,000 
)545 Other Committed Fund Balance 2,400,000 

Assigned Fund Balance: 
35'10 Other Ass igned Fund Balance 978,992 
3600 Unassigned Fund Balance 11 ,001,376 

3000 Total Fund Balances 18,487,574 

4000 Total Liabilit ies, Defen·ed lntlows & Fund Balances $ 47,303,174 $ 

The notes to the financial s tatements are an integral patt of this stalemcnt. 
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60 

Capital Projects-
2022 13ond 

I $ 
78,564,449 

78,564,450 $ 

92 1,778 $ 

921,778 

77,642,672 

77,642,672 

78,564.450 $ 

EXHIBITC-1 

Total 
Other Governmental 
Funds l'w1ds 

3,484,147 $ 5,678,272 
1,471, 173 121,514,734 

187,835 1,934,547 
(9,392) (96,728) 

1,372,960 2,074,851 
3,8 11 1,069,140 

96,136 
44,806 83,219 

5,355 74,148 

6,560,695 $ 132,428,3 19 

34,209 $ 1,279,884 
35,178 318,450 

805,369 3,259,028 
985,933 1,069,140 

23,905,457 
40,278 147,010 

1,900,967 29,978,969 

178,443 1,837,819 

178,443 1,837,819 

44,806 83,219 
68,793 

1,530,957 1,530,957 
77,642,672 

2,554,085 2,554,085 
316,891 316,891 

34,546 4,034,546 
2,400,000 

978,992 
11,001 ,376 

4,481 ,285 100,611 ,531 

6,560,695 $ 132,428,319 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DfSTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2023 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Capital assets and Right-to-Use Lease Assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in governmental funds. At the beginning of the year, 
the cost of these assets was $95, 107,496 and the accumulated depreciation was ($50,700,554). 
In addition, long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the 
current period, and, therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of 
including the beginning balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debt in 
the governmental activities is to increase net position. 

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in the 
fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and 
reductions in long-tern, debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect of 
including the capital outlays and debt principal payments is to increase net position. 
Similarly, the principal payments on Right-to-Use Lease Assets and $BIT A Assets are not 
expenses, rather they are decreases in the Right-to-Use Lease Liabilities and the SBlTA 
Liabilities. These payments must be reclassified and shown as reductions to these liabilities 
increasing Net Position. 

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability required by GASB 68. The net position related to TR$ inlcuded a 
deferred resource outflow in the amount of $4,647,679, a deferred resource inflow in the 
amount of $932,646, and a net pension liability in the amount of$ I 0,394,666. This resulted in 
a decrease in net position. 

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the District's proportionate share of 
the net OPBB liability required by GASB 75. The net position related to TRS included a 
deferred resource outflow in the amount of $1,728,649, a deferred resource inflow in the 
amount of$ 10,041,184, and a net OPEB liability in the amount of $6,027,479. This resu lted in 
a decrease in net position. 

The current year depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect of 
the current year's depreciation is to decrease net position. 

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the modified 
accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing 
unavailable revenue from property taxes as revenue, reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales 
as an increase in bonds payable, and recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long­
term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to decrease 
net position. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial stutements are an integral part of this staternent, 
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EXI-OBIT C-2 

I 00,611 ,531 

31,897,780 

11,873,4 18 

(6,679,633) 

( 14,340,014) 

(3,315,864) 

(82,313,467) 

37,733,751 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGBS IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2023 

Data 10 
Control Genetal 
Codes rund 

REVENUES: 
5100 ·rotal Local and lntennediate SoUl'ces $ 54,453,444 
580() Stale l'rol!]'am Revenues 3,471 ,687 
5900 Federal Pro~-am Reve1iues 868,2'7 I 

50:?0 Total Revenues 58,793,402 

l;Xl'ENDITlJRES: 

Current: 
0011 lnstructio11 16,280,367 
0012 Instructional Resources ru1d Media Services 252,055 
0013 Curriculum and Instructional Staff Develor,ment 61,730 
0021 Instructional Leadershir, 823,766 
0023 School Leadershio 1,748,962 
0031 Guidance. Counseling, and Evaluation Services 850,791 
0032 Social Work Services 4,536 
0033 Hea!lh Services 368,95 1 
0034 Student (Puo ill Tr1111soort11tit)o 1,076,975 
0035 Food Services 
0036 fairacurriculur Aclivilics 1,704,932 
0041 General Adrninislrution 1,4-33 ,175 
0051 Facilities Maintenance und Ooerntions 3,703,967 
0052 Sccuritv Hnd M onilnrin~ Services 549.163 
0053 Dain Processing Servi~-cs 742,695 
0061 Communilv Services 408,665 

Dcbl Scrvicc; 
0071 Princioal on Long-Tenn Liabilities 2 15,071 
0072 lnlercsl on Loni?:-Tt:nn. Liabilities 1,159 
0073 Bond lss11once Cost and fees 

Cupitol Outlay; 
0081 fucililies Acuuisition and Construlllion 479,895 

lnlcrgoveminenlal; 
0091 Contracted Instructional Services 13etween Schools 23,679,066 
0092 lncrc:rnentul Cost$ Associated with Chao ter 41 27,000 
0093 Pav men ts lo Fiscal A11.enlftvl ember Dislricls of SSA I , 155,433 
0099 Other lnlcr11.0vcmmcnlul Clum.i.es 723,384 

6030 Total E11-pcnditurcs 56,292,338 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (U ndcr) 2,501 ,064 
fapcnditun:s 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES); 
791 1 Cap ital Related Debi Issued 
7913 Proceeds of Ri11ht-to-Use Lease 159,538 
79 1 S Transfers fn 
79 16 Prnmium or Discount on Issuance of Bonds 
8911 Transfers Out (Use) 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) I 59,538 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 2,660,602 

0100 fund Balance• July I (Beg.inning) I 5,826.972 

3000 Fund Bo lane~ - June 30 ( Ending) $ 18,487,574 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stutcment. 
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60 
Capital Projects• 

2022 Bond 

$ 2,972.477 

2,972,477 

181 ,529 

737, 164 

7,001,156 

7,919,849 

(4,947,372) 

77,820,000 

4,917, 164 
(147,120) 

82,590,044 

77,642,672 

$ 77,642.672 

Other 
Func!s 

$ 9,543,869 
399,100 

5,117,942 

15,060,9 11 

3,846,994 
122.427 
140, 125 
437,359 

9,770 
1,057.45) 

98.495 
38,024 

1,845.438 
16 1,876 

2, 180 
9 14 

11 8.780 

52.423 

4. 173,972 
2,280,2 12 

303, 129 

15.638 

14,705,209 

355,702 

147. 120 

147,120 

502,822 

3,978,463 

$ 4.481,285 

EXHIOITC-3 

Total 
Govcrnmcncal 

Funds 

$ 66,969,790 
3,870,787 
5,986,2 1 J 

76,826,790 

20,127,36 1 
374.482 
201,855 

1,26 1.1 25 
1,758.732 
1,908,244 

103.031 
406,975 

1,258,504 
1,845,438 
1,866,808 
1,435,355 
3,704,881 

667.943 
742,695 
461,088 

4,389.043 
2,281,97 1 

737, 164 

7 .784. 180 

23 .679.066 
27,000 

1.171.071 
723,384 

78,917,396 

(2,090,606) 

77,820,000 
159,538 
147, 120 

4,917, 164 
(147, 120) 

82,896,702 

80,806,096 

19,605,435 

$ 100,611,531 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT C-4 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund 
financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long­
term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect of removing the current year 
capital outlays and debt principal payments is to decrease the change net position. Similarly, current 
year principal payments on Right-to-Use Leases and SIBTAs are also reclassified as reductions to 
the Right-To-Use Lease Liability and the SBITA liability which will result in an increase in the 
change in Net Position. 

Depreciati.on is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not require the use 
of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's depreciation is to decrease the 
change in net position. 

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convett from the modified accrual 
basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing unavailable revenue 
from property taxes as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the revenue earned from the 
current year's tax levy, rec lassifying the proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities 
associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and 
recognitions is to decrease the change in net position. 

GASB 68 required that certain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource 
outflows. These contributions made after the measurement date of the plan caused the change in 
ending net position to increase by $804,405. Contributions made before the measurement date and 
during the previous fiscal year were also expended and recorded as a reduction in net pension 
liability. This caused a decrease in the change in net position totaling $688,139. Finally, the 
propo1tionate share of the TRS pension expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded. The net 
pension expense decreased the change in net position by $449,069. The net result is a decrease in 
the change in net position. 

GASB 75 required that ce1tain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource 
outflows. These contributions made after the measurement date of the plan caused the change in 
ending net. position to increase by $1 86,650. Contributions made before the measurement date and 
during the previous fiscal year were also expended and recorded as a reduction in net OPEB 
liability. This caused a decrease in the change in net position totaling $173,324. Finally, the 
proportionate share o f the TRS OPEB expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded . The net 
OPEB expense increased the change in net position by $1,116, I 88. The net result is an increase in 
the change in net position. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the ti11a11cial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
2 1 

$ 

$ 

80,806,096 

11 ,873,4 18 

(3,3 15,864) 

(83,632,052) 

(332,803) 

1,129,514 

6,528,309 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2023 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments - Current 
Other Receivables 
Restricted Assets 

Total Assets 

NET POSITION 
Restricted for Scholarships 
Restricted for Other Purposes 

Total Net Position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT E- 1 

836-849 

Investment Custodial 
Trust Fund Fund 

49,282 $ 128,564 
47 1,221 

1,543 
52,332 

574,378 $ 128,564 

574,378 
128,564 

574,378 $ 128,564 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

ADDITIONS: 

Cocurricular Services or Activities 
Earnings from Temporary Deposits 
Contributions, Gifts and Donations 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Professional and Contracted Services 

Supplies and Materials 
Other Deductions 

Total Deductions 

Change in Fiduciary Net Position 

Total Net Position • July I (Beginning) 

Total Net Position -June 30 (Ending) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

23 

$ 

$ 

836-849 
Investment 

Trust Fund 

20,499 

68,835 

89,334 

2,010 

72,124 

74,134 

15,200 

559, I 78 

574,378 

EXHIBIT E-2 

Custodial 

Fund 

$ 99,542 

99,542 

1,170 

21,285 

66,792 

89,247 

10,295 

118,269 

$ [28,564 



Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Fredericksburg 1s0 

Fredericksburg Independent School District (the "District") is a public educational agency opcrnting under the applicable 
laws and regulations of the State of Texas. It is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees (the "Board") elected by 
registered voters of the District. The District prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with genernlly accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other 
authoritalive sources identified in GASB StatemeNI No. 56. and it complies with the require111ents of the appropriate 
version of Texas Education Agency•~ Financial 1Jccoun!ability System Resource Guide ( the "Resource Guide") and the 
requirements ol' contracts and grants of ugencies from which ii receives funds. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

The Board of Trustees (the "Board") is elected by the public and it has the authority to make decisions, appoint 
administrators and manageri:, and signilicanlly inlluence operations. II also has the primury accountability for fiscal 
matters. Therefore. the District is a financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board ("GASB") in its Statement No. 14, ;;The Financial Reporting Entity," ·n1ere are no component units included 
within the reporting enti ty. 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Stalemenl of' Nel Position and lhe S!atemcnl of Activities arc government-wide financial statements. They report 
information on all of the Fredericksburg Independent School District nonfiduciary activities with most of the interfund 
activities removed. Governmental activities include progrnms supported primarily by taxes. SU\te foundation funds, 
grants, .ind other intergovernmental revenues. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates how otber people or entities that participate in programs the District operations 
have shared in the payment of the direct costs. The "charges for services" column includes pay ments made by parties 
that purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or servlces provided by a given function or segment or the District. 
Examples include tuition paid by students not residing in the district, schoo l lunch charges, etc. The "grants and 
contributions" column includes amounts paid by organizations outside the District to help meel lhe operational or capital 
requirements of a given function. Exnmples include grants under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. If a 
revenue is not a program revenue, it is a general revenue used to support all ofthe District's functions. Taxes are always 
general revenues. 

lnterfund activities between governmental funds appear as due to/due froms on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 
and as other resources and other uses on the governmental fund Statement of Revenues. Expenditures nnd Changes in 
Fund Balance. All inlerfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on the government-wide 
statements. lntcrfund activities between governmental funds and fiduciary funds remain as due to/due froms on the 
government-wide S1atement of Net Posltion. 

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results or operations for two rund categories 
- governmental and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds cannot be used for District operations, they are 
not included in government-wide statements. The District considers some governmental funds major and reports their 
financial oonditlon and results of operations in a separate column. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses result 
frorn providing services and producing and delivering goods ln connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
All other revenues and expenses arc non-operating. The District has no such funds. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL 
ST A TEMENT PRESENTATION 

The government-wide financial statements use the economic re.sources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as do the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues arc recorded when earned and expenses nre recorded 
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash nows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they arc levied. Grants and similar Hems arc recognized as revenue as soon as nil eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual 
basis or accounting. With this measurement rocus, only current assets, current liabilities and fund balances are included 
on the balance shccL Operating statements of these funds present net increases and decreases in current assets (i.e .. 
revenues and other financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses). 

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become both 
measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, 
if measurable, except for unmatured interest and principal on long-term debt, which is recognized when due. The 
expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments arc rcco~nized when the obligations arc 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 'fhe District considers all revenues available if 
they are collectible within 60 days 11fler year end. 

Revenues from local soun:cs consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the 
State are recognized under the "susceptible to accrual" concept that is, when they are both measurable and available. The 
District considers them "available" if they will be collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Miscellaneous 
revenues arc recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actu.il ly 
received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available. 

Grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant. 
Accordingly. when such funds arc received. they are recorded as unearned revenues until related and authorized 
expenditures have been made. If balances have not been expended by the end of the project period, grantors sometimes 
require the District to refund all or part or the unused amount. 

The Fiduciary Funds are accounted for on a !low of economic resources measurement focus and utilize the accrual basis 
of accounting. This basis or accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned and 
become measurable and expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred and become measurable. The 
District applies all GASB pronouncements ns well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued 
on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncemenis conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements. With this 
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the fund 
Statement of Net Position. The fund equity is segregated into invested in capital assets net o f related debt, restricted net 
position, and unrestricted net position. 

D. FUND ACCOUNTING 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

Genernl Fund• The general fund is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
except those: required to be: accounted for in another fund. 

Cnpitnl Projects Fund • The capital projects fund accounts for the bond proceeds and related construction and 
renovation proj ects of the District. 

Additionally, the District reports the following fund lype(s); 

Governmentnl Funds; 

1. Special Revenui! Funds - The District accounts for resources restricted 10, or designated for, specific 
purposes by the District or a granter in a special revenue fl.ind. Most Federal and some State financial 
assistance is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund, and sometimes unused balances must be 
returned to the granter at the close of specified project periods. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

2. Debt Service Funds • The District accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for 
principal and interest on long-lerm general obligation debt or governmental runds in n debt service 
fund. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

1. Private Purpose Trust Funds • The District accounts for donations for which the donor has stipulated 
that both the principal and the income may be used for purposes that benefit parties outside the District. 
The District's Private Purpose Trust Fund is the scholarship fund. 

2. Custodi11l Funds - The District accounts for resources held for others in a custodial capacity in 
custodial funds. The District's Custodial Fund is the Student Activity Account. 

E. FUND BALANCE POLICY 

Fredericksburg Independent School DisLTict reports fund balance for governmental funds in classifications based 
primarily on the extent to which the district is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in 
those funds can be spent. The nonspendable classification represenls assets that wil l be consumed or "must be 
maintained in tact" and therefore will never convert to cash, such as inventories of supplies and cndowmenls. Provisions 
of laws, contracts, and grants specify how fund resources can be used in the restricted classification. The nature of these 
1wo classi fi cations precludes n need for a policy from the Board of Trustees. However, the Board has adopted fund 
balance policies for the three unrestricted classifications - committed, assigned, and unassigned. 

From time to time, the Board of Trustees may commit fund balances by a majority vote in a scheduled meeting. The 
Board's commitment may be modified or rescinded by a majority vote in a scheduled meeting. Board com111it111ents 
cannot exceed the amount offund balance that is greater than the sum of nonspendable and restricted fund balances since 
that practice would commit funds that the district does not have. Commitments may be for facility expansion or 
renovation, program modifications, wage und salary adjustments, financial cushions and other purposes deter,nined by 
the Board. 

The Board of Trustees may delegate authority to specified persons or groups to make assignments of certain fund 
balances by a majority vote in a scheduled meeting. T he Board may modify or rescind its delegation of authority by the 
same action. The authority to make assignments shall be in effect until modified or rescinded by the Board by majority 
vote in a scheduled meeting. 

When the District incurs expenditures that can be made from either restricted or unrestricted balances. the expenditures 
should be charged to restricted balances. When the District incurs expenditures that can l)e made from either committed, 
assigned, or unassigned balances, the expenditures should be charged in that same order. 

Nott•Sflendnhlo: 
Inventory 
Pre-paid Hems 

Rutrlctcd For: 
School Nutrition 
Debt Service 
Bond Capital Projects 
Campus Activity Fund 

Commlttorl To: 
Construction 
Future Salary Needs 

A•slgnod 
Unns,lgned 

Total Fund Bol:mco 

Gonornl 
Fund 

38,413 

68,793 

4,000,000 

2.400,000 
978.992 

11,001,376 

18,487.574 

School 
Nutrition 

Fund 

44,806 

1,530,957 

1,575,763 

C11piwl Dcl>t 
Projects Service 

Fund Funrl 

2,554,085 

77,642,672 

77,642,672 2,SS4.08S 

26 

Locnl 
Co(lltal 
rroj~cti 

34,546 

34,546 

Other 

Fundi 

3[6,891 

Totnls 

83,2[9 

68,793 

1,530,957 

2,554,085 

77,642,672 

316,891 

4,034,546 

2.400,000 
978,992 

11 ,001,376 

316.89) 100;611,S31 



Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

F. OTHER ACCOUNTfNG POUCIES 

Frederlck,burg ISO 

I. ror purposes or the statement of cash flows. the District considers highly liquid investments to be cash 
equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased. See Section Ill, Note A 
for more detai Is. 

2. Temporary investments thnt have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are valued 
at amortized cost because the fair value of the investments generally is not affected by the impairment of 
ihe credit standing of the issuer or by other factors. Investments are valued at fair value. 

3. The District reports inventories of General Fund supplies at cost including consumable paper and fuel. 
Supplies are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed. Inventories of School Nutrition food 
commodities arc recorded at market values supplied by the Texas Department of Agriculture. Although 
commodities are received at no cost, their fair market value is supplied by the Texas Department of 
Agriculture and recorded as commodity expenditures and commodity revenue when received. Al year end, 
the inventory balance and unearned income/deferred revenue is recorded. 

4 . Unearned revenue accounted for on the balance sheet of the general fund relates to excess funds received 
from the Texas Education Agency over earned amou111s. 

5. The District provides risk management obligations by carrying appropriate insurance. Property and 
general liability insurance is obtained from a licensed insurer. Risk of loss is not retained by the 
District. 

6. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions thal aftecl the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities al the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

7. !n the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement or net position. Material bond 
premiums and discounts are reported as deferred charges and amo1tized over the term of the related 
debt. 

In lhe fund financial statements, governmental lund types recognize bond issuance costs during the 
current. period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
eKpenditures. 

8. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the District does not have a policy to pay 
any amounts when employees separate from service with the government. 

9. Capital assets, which include land, buildings, furniture and equipment are reported in the applicable 
governmental columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 
District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in 
excess ofl wo years. Such assets arc: recorded at historical cost or esii mated historical cost. if purchased 
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. 

The costs o f normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Buildings, furniture and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Asset Type 

Building;; 
Improvements 
Buses 
Other Vehicles 

Years 

30 
s to 30 

10 
5 to 7 

Asset Type 

Other Equipment 
Com1>ute1· Equipment 
Office Equipment 
Computer Sort ware 

Fredericksburg l~I) 

Years 

5 to 7 
5 
5 
3 

10. In the fund t1nancinl statements. governmental funds report restricted and committed fund balances 
for amounts that arc not available for appropriation or arc legally rcstricttd by outside parties for use 
for a sr eci fie purpose. 

11 . The Data Control Codes refer to the account code structure prescribed by TEA in the Fimmcinl 
Acco1111tnbility System Re.source Guide. Texas Education Agency rcquirts school districts to display 
these codes in the financial statements tiled with the Agency in order to insure accuracy in building a 
Statewide data base for policy development and runding plnns. 

12. P,;nsions. The liduciary net position or the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) has been 
determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of 
accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deforrnd outflows of 
resources and deterred inflows or resources related to pensions, pension expense, and information 
about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS's fiduciary ntlposition. Bene lit payments 
(including refunds of employee conlributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with lht benefit lcrms. lnvcslmcnts an: reported al fair value. 

13 . Other Post-Employment Benefits. The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System or Texas 
(TRS) TRS Care Plan has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and 
full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred 
outl'luws of n:sourccs and deferred inflows of resuuri.es related to other post-employment benefits, OPEB 
expense, and information about asset~. liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS Care's fiduciary 
net position. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
There arc.: no investments as this is a pay-as-you-go plan and all cash is held in a cash account. 

14 . In addition to assets, lhc s!atemcnt of financial posi tion wi ll sometimes n:port a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources. represents a consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and so wi ll not be 
recognized as an outtlow of resources {expense/expenditure) until then. The District's del'erred 
outllows of resources consist of deferred charges for pension contributions made after the 
measurement date of August 31. 202 1 and during the District's current reporting period, differences 
between the expected and actual economic experience in the pension plan and changes in actuarial 
assumptions. 

15. In addition to liabilities. the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred inflows or 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that appl ies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one type of item which 
arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. 
Uncollected property taxes which are assumed collectible are reported in this category on the balance 
sheet for governmental funds. They are not reported in this category on tht government wide 
statement of net position. In the government wide financial statements, the District reports the deferred 
inflows for pension for the District's proportionate share of the de.ferred inllow for the difference 
between the projected and actual investment earnings in the pension plan. 

16. GASB Statement No. 87. As of .July 1, 2021, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 87, leases. The 
implementation oflhis standard establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundationa l 
principle that lea~es are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The standard requires recognition 
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classiffod as operating leases and 
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the 
cont met. The effoct of the implementation of this standard on beginning net position is disclosed in Note 
Y and the additional disclosures required by this standard is included in Note 1-1. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 fr~d~ricksburg IS[) 

II. 

17. Implementation of GASB Statement No. 96. As of July I, 2022, the District adopted GASB Stntemi;nt 
No. 96, Subscription- Based Information Technology Arra11gemems. The implementation of this standard 
establishes that a SBIT A results in a right-to-use subsedption asset (an intangible asset) and a 
corresponding subscription liability. The standard ri;quires recognition of right-lo-use subscription assets 
and liabilities for SBIT As that previously were classified as operating expenditures based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. The disclosures required by this standard is included in Note I. 

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNT ABILITY 

A. BUDGETARYDATA 

The Board of Trustees adopts an ''appropriated budget" for the Genernl Fund, Debt Service Fund and the Food Service 
fund which is included in the Special Revenue Funds. The District is n:quired to pri;sent the adopted and tinal amended 
budgeted revenues and expenditures for each of these funds. The District compares the final amended budget to actual 
revenues and expenditures. The General Fund Budget report api,ears in Exhibit G• l and the other two reports are in Exhibit 
J-2 and J-3. 

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial statements: 

I. Prior to June 20 the District prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year beginning July L The 
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2. A meeting orthe Board is then called for the purpose ofadopting the proposed budget. At least ten days' public 
notice: of the meeting must be given. 

3. Prior to July I, thi: budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Board. Once a budget is 
approved, it can only be amended at the function and fund level by approval of a majority of the members of 
the Board. Amendments are presented to the Hoard at its regular meetings. Each amendment must have Board 
approval. As n;quired by law, such amendments arc m1:1de before the fact , arc reflected in the official minutes 
of the Board, and are not made after fiscal year end. Because the District has a policy of careful budgetary 
control, several amendments were necessary during the yeur. 

4. Each budget is controlled by the budget coordinator at the revenue and expenditure function/object level. 
Budgeted amounts arc as amended by the Board. All budget appropriations lapse at year end. A reconciliation of 
fund balances for both appropriated budget and nonappropriated budget special revenue funds is as follows: 

June 30, 2023 fund Balance 

Appropriated Budget Funds 
food Service Special Revenue Fund 

Nonappropriated Budget Fund 

A II Special Revenue funds 

B. VARIANCES FROM FINAL ADOPTED BUDGET 

$ 1,575,763 
316,891 

$ 1,892,6S4 

Budgets arc required lo be adopted for the General Fund, the School Nutrition Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. Original and 
Final Budgets are compared with the actual amounts at fiscal year•end. Variances with the flnal budget are noted. 

I. The General Fund is analyzed in Exhibit G-1. Revenue: variance was positive and expenditure variance was positive. 
2. The School Nutrition Fund is analyzed in Exhibit J•2, Revenue variance was negative and expenditures variance was positive. 
3. The Debt Service Fund is W1alyzcd in Exhibit J. J . Revenue variance was negative and expenditures variance was positive. 
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111. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

District Policies and Legal Contractual Provision Governing Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits Srntc law requires governmental entities to contract with financial institutions in which 
funds wiU be deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities with a fair value equaling or exceeding 
the amount on deposit nt the end of each business day. The pledged securities must be in the name of the governmental entity 
and held by an agent. At year end, the District's deposits were not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

At June 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $5,854,817 and the bank balance was $6,462,748. 

Investments 
The District is required by the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Cod\: (PFIA), to adopt 1md 
implement an investment policy. Thal policy must address the following ;ireas: safety of principal and liquidity. portfolio 
diversification, allowable investments, acccplabl\: risk levels, expected rates of return, maximum allowable stated maturity of 
portfolio investments, maximun1 average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, 
investments staff quality and capabilities, and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. Statues authorize the 
District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies and the State of Texas. certificates of deposit, certain 
municipal securities, and money market guaranteed investment contracts. The PFlA also requires the District to have 
independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment practices as provided by the PFlA. The District is in 
substantial compliance with the requirements of the PFIA and with local policies. 

The investment pools used by the District are organized under the authority of the lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, 
Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. The investment pools 
are public fonds investment pools created to provide a safe environment for the placement of local governlllent funds in 
authorized short-term investments. In addition to other prnvisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and s11fcly of 
principnl, the Act requires Pools to: 

1. Have an advisory board composed or participants in the pool and other persons who do 1101 have a business 
relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool. 

2. Maintain II continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or 11n equivaleiH rating by al least one 
nationally recognized rating service, and 

3. Maintain the market value of its underlying investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the villuc 
of its sha1·es. 

Presented below is the percentage invested for each short term investment, the fair value as of June 30, 2023 (Exhibit C• l & 
E- 1 ), the investment rating and the minimum rating required by the Act. 

Minimum 
Percentage Fair Investment Lc~l 

Descrip tio11 Invested Value$ Rali11g Rating 
LOGIC Pool 1% 1,635,949 AAA AAA 

Texas Class Pool 20% 24,162,226 AAA AAA 
Lone Star Pool 41% 49,541,702 AAA AAA 

TcXllS Rangi:: Pool 38% 46.646,078 AAA AAA 
Tot;il5 100% $ 121 ,985,955 

The District's investments in investment pools, which are exempt from regulation by the SEC, provides for the objectives for 
safety, flexibility, and competilive yields. Most of the pools have U1e objective ofa net asset value of$1.00 wherein the book 
value of the position in the pools is the same as the number of the shares In each pool: the market value of a share should 
approximately equal the book value of a share. The Distl'ict utilizes the pools described below. 

LOGIC (Local Government Investment CoopernUve) is established in conformity with the Inter-local Cooperation Act, Chapter 
791 of the Texas Government Code. Logic funds allow shareholders the ability to deposit or withdraw funds daily. Interest 
rates are adjusted daily, and the fund seeks lo maintain a constant net asset value of $1.00, although this cannot be guaranteed. 
Logic is rated AAAm and must maintain a weighted average maturity not to exceed 60 days. The District considers the holdings 
in these funds to have a one-day weighted average maturity. This is due to the fact that the share position can usually be 
redeemed each day at the discretion of the shareholder, short ofa significant change in value. On June 30, 2023, the weighted 
average maturity was 40 days and the net asset value was .999615. 
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The Loncstar Investment Pool ("Lone Star") is a public funds investment pool created pursuant to the lntcrlocal Cooperation 
Act, Texa.~ Government Code, Chapter 791, and the Public Funds lnvestrnent Act, Texos Government Code, Chapter 2256. 
Lorn.: Star is administered by FirSt Public, a subsidiary of the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB), with American 
Beacon Advisors and Mellon Investments Corporation managing the investment and reinvestment on Lone Star's assets. State 
Street Bank provides custody and vnluntion services lo Lone Star. All or the board of trustees' eleven members are pnrticipants 
by wither being employees or cl.cctcd officials ofa participant. Lone Star has established an advisory board composed of both 
pool members and non-members. Lone Star is rated AAA by Standard and Poor's and seeks to maintain a net a~set value Qf 
$1.00 and its dollar-weighted avcrnge maturity is 120 days or fewer. On June 30, 2023, the weightcd average maturity was 80 
days. 

The Texas Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System Trnst (Texas CLASS) is a Local QQvernment Investment Pool 
established in conformity with the Inter-local Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 or the Texas Government Code nnd the Public 
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. Texas CLASS is administered by Public Trust Advisors, 
LLC arid UMB Bank., N.A. provides custody and valuation services to Texas CLASS. Texas CLASS is rated AAA by Standard 
and Poor's and seeks to maintain a net asset value of $1.00 and its dollar-weighted average maturity is 120 days or fewer. On 
June 30, 2023, the average weighted maturity was 80 days. 

The TexaslERM Local Government Investment Pool, now doing business as the Texas Range Investment l'rogram (Texas 
Range) is a Local Government Investment Pool established in conformity with the Inter-local Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 
of the Texas Government Code and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. Texas 
Rnnge is directed by PFM Asset Management LLC and U.S. Bank, N.A. provides custody and valuation services to Texas 
Range. Texas Range is rated AAA by Fitch 's Fund Rating and seeks to maintain a net asset value of $1.00 and its dollar­
weighted average maturity is 120 days 01· fewer. On June 30, 2(>23, the average weighted maturity wa~ 31 days. 

Policies Qoyernjng Deposjts and investments 

ln compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act. the District hns adopted n deposit and investment policy. That policy 
docs address the following risks: 

Credit Risk: 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized stillislical rating organization. 

Concen1ralio11 of Creclit Risk: 
The District places no limit on lhi: nmount it may invest in any one issuer: rather, investments are governed by the objectives 
of preservation and safety of principal. liquidity, and yield. 

Interest R{lfe tusk: 
Generally, interest rate risk recognizes that changes in interest rates could adversely affect the value of investments. The 
District <loc:s not purchase any investments with maturities grenter than one yeiir from the time of purchase. The Board may 
specifically authorize a longer maturity for a given investment within the legal limits of five (5) years. The District uses its 
investments in the investment pools to mitigate interest rate risk. 

B. PROPERTY TAXES 

Property ta.xcs arc levied by October I on the assessed value listed as of the prior Januory I for all real and business 
personal property located in the District in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on 
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February I of the year following the year in which imposer.I. 
On January 31 of each year, a tax lien attaches to prope11y to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties. and interest 
ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered avai lable (I ) when they become due or pa~t due and receivable 
within the current period and (2) when they are expected to be collected during a 60-day period aftcrthr: close oflhe school 
fiscal year. 

C. DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE 

Delinquent taxes are prorated between maintenance and debt service based on rates adopted for the year of the levy. 
Allowonccs for uncollectible ta.x receivables within the General and Debt Service Fu,tds are based on historical 
experience in collecting prope11y taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes arc periodically reviewed nnd written off, 
but the District is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texa.5 
Legislature. 
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D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The District participates in a varicly or federal nnd ~tate programs frnin which it receives grants to partially or fully fund 
certain aclivitics. The District also receives entit lements from the Stale through thi; School Foundation and Pel' Capita 
Progt'llms. During the course of operations, numerous transactions occul' between individual funds for good provided or 
servicc.:s rendered. These n;:Ccivublcs and puyablcs are classified as "due from otliel' funds" or "due to other funds." The 
composition of interfund balances (Exhibit C-1) as of June 30, 2023 is as follows; 

Due from Due lo 
Fund Other Funds Other r unds 

General Fund $ l,065,329 $ !!3,207 
Cilpirnl Prnjccts Pund Ci? 
SpL-cinl llcvcnuc Fund 3,81 1 985,866 

TOTAL $ 1,069, l<IO $ 1,069,140 

Al l intcrf"und balances rcsulled from lime lag between the date Ihat ( I) lnterfund goods and services arc provided or 
reimbursable expenditures occurs, (2) transactions arc recorded in the accounling system, and (3) payments between fi.1nds are 
made. 

E. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Receivables al June 30, 2023 were as fo llows: 
f'rope1ty ou,, ... Tolnl 

Tn.~cs Governments Other Rcccivnblcs 

Go\\!rTittH~ntni f\~t!villei: 

General Fund s 1,746.712 s 701,891 s %,136 s 2,~44,1)9 

Cnp itnl Projc-ct~ Fund 
Nonmnjor Govcrnmcntnl Funds 187,835 1,)72,960 i,560.79$ 

Tolnl Govcnnm,nlnl Ac1i,·itk"' s 1,934,547 s 2.074,851 s 9i,,136 s 4,1 05,~34 

i\ mounts nut sd11-,lulocl rur ~ollcel ion 
durinJ:t 1l1c :;11b~1.,1uc111 yci1r $ %.72~ s s s 96,728 

Payables at June 30, 2023 were as fo llows; 
S,,larics Due lo 

Accounts nnd Due lo Other Totol 

l'"l••blc Oe11cfi1s Other Funds Govcmmcnts Pnyublcs 

Govcmmcnlnl Activit io~; 

Genernl F1rnu s 32),897 $ 2,736,931 s 83,207 s 23,905.457 s 27,049,4n 
Cupitul Projects Fund 921,778 921,778 

Nomm,jor Govcm,ncncal Fund~ 34,209 840,547 985,933 1,860,689 
Total Govemmcmal Aclivilics $ l ,279,R84 $ 3,577.478 $ 1,069,140 s 23,905,457 s 29,831,959 

AttKl\lllls nt)t 8ChCdirled for p~)"IHCIII 
duri11g 11,c subscqucnl year $ $ $ $ $ 
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F. CAPJT AL ASSET ACTIVITY 

Capital asset activity (Exhibit A-1) for the District for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Govcmmenrnl Activh,es: 
Non-depreciable Assets: 
Land 
Consmmion in Progress 

Depreciable Assets· 
Buildings & Improvements 
Furniture & Equipment 

Totals al J-listoric Cost 
Less: Acc11m11la1ed 

Depreciation for: 
Buildings & Improvements 
Furniture & Equip111ent 

Total Accumula!cd Depreciation 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net 

RighHo-Use & SBITA Assets Bein& 
Amonized 

Equipment 
SBITA 

Total Right•!O•Use & SBITA Assets 

Less accumulated a.rnortization 
Equipment 
SBITA 

Tomi Accumulated A1noniza1ion 

Total Right-to-Use & SBITA Asm 
Bdng Amortized, Net 

Govcmmcntal Activities Capital Assets, 
N~t 

Asset V~luc 
Depreciation 
Assets, net value (Exhibit A-I) 

s 

s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

li 

$ 

Beginning 
Balance 

8,674,534 
144,052 

73,566,326 
12,103,424 
94,488,336 

(39,745,828) 
( I 0,854,996) 
(50,600,824 l 

43,887,5 12 

522,958 
96,202 

619,160 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(99,730) $ 

(99,730) $ 

5 19,430 s 

44,406,942 $ 

Buildin!S 
74,054, 104 

(42!29410642 
31 760,040 

Primary Government 

Addilions Retire111ents 

359,914 $ s 
6,027,202 

487,778 
468,1 83 !557101 I l 

7,343,077 (557,01 I) 

(:2,548,236) 
(561,874) SS2,312 

(3,110,110) 552,312 

4,232,967 s i4,699l s 

6,060 s $ 
153,478 
I 59,538 s s 

( 134,628) $ s 
(7 1,126) 

(205,754) $ s 

(46,2 16) S - s 

4, 186.751 $ (4,699) $ 

Furniture & 
Eguie,nenl 

$ 12,014,596 
! I 018643558) 

$ 1,150 038 

Depreciat ion expense totaling $3,110, 11 O was charged to governmental funct ions as follows: 

C0 
Fredericksburg 1, D 

Ending 
Balance 

9,034,448 
6, 171 ,254 

74,054,104 
12,014,596 

101,274 402 

(42,294,064) 
(10,864,558} 
(SJ, I 58,62:?) 

48 I 15,780 

529,018 
249,680 
778,698 

{234,358) 
(71, 126) 

(305,484) 

473,214 

48,588,994 

FuncHon Amount l'u11c1ion Amount 
lnstructlo,1 1,639,398 Studelil (Pup,I) 'frMsportation 102,721 
Instructional Resources 30,566 School Nutrition JS0,621 
Curriculum 16,475 Co-curricular/fa1rncurricular Activities 152,372 
Instructional Leadership 103,180 General Administration 118,669 
School Lcnsdcrship 143,SSO Plant M aintcnancc & Opera! ions 302,398 

Guidance, Counsellng & Evaluation ISS.754 Securily 54,5 18 

Social Wo1k Services 8,409 Darn Processln11 60,620 

Heall h Services 33,218 Community Services 37,63S 
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Amortization expense totaling $205,754 was charged to the District's functions as follows: 

Fredericksburg l~D 

Function Amount ...,,F,....u,_1c_1i_o,,....1 ---,-...,,,----,--,---.,....,..,----------A-11=w_u_n1...,.,,..,....,.,,-
h1s1ruc1ion 143,502 Co•curticular/Extrncurriclllar Ac1ivllies 13,257 
Instructional Lcudership 8,626 General Administration 10,485 
School Lcudcrship I 1,919 Dain Processing Services 5,033 
Guida nce, Counseling & r;vnlunlion Servi. 12,932 

G, BONDS PAYABLE 

Bonded indebtedness of the District is reflected in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A-1) in the govcrnmr.:nt-wide financial 
statements. Current year payments for principal and interest expenditures are accounted for in the Debt Service Fund in the Statement 
of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balance (Exhibit C-3) in the fund financial statements. All bonds issued for 
governmental activity purposes arc liquidated by the debt service fund. A summary of changes in general long-term debt for the year 
ended June 30, 2023 is as follows: 

Interest Amounts lntcrcsl Amounts Amounts 
Rale Origins.I Curren! O u1s1anding Oulslnnding 

Description Pnvnblc Issue Ycnr 7/1/2022 Issued Relir~d 6/30/2023 

School Tax Bonds - 20 IS I.OS-6.8% s 7,S00,000 s 102,239 $ d,030,000 s s 250,000 $ 3,780,000 

School Ta~ Bonds - 20 16 1.8 1% s 9.000,000 96,111 5,310,000 385.000 4.925,000 
Refunding Bond- 20 19 1.80% s 6.135.000 49,140 2.730.UOO 153$,00(J i ,09S,OOO 
School Tax Bo11<ls • l 022 4,00•S.00% $ 77,820,000 2.032,68J 77.~20,000 21900.000 741no.ooo 

$ 2,280,173 $ 12,070.000 $ 77,820,000 $ 4,170.000 $ 85,720.000 

Deb! scrvicc rcquircmcnts arc as follows; 
Ye1tr Ended TO!iil 

Ju11c 30 Pdtlcipal lrllcresl Rcguin,rnems 
102d s 3,050,000 $ 3.563,816 $ 6,6 13,816 

2025 3,280,000 JA51,934 6,73 1,934 

2026 2,S30,UOO 3,JZ7,S()7 S,8S7,S07 
2027 2,61 S.000 3,241, 171 5,856,17 1 
2028 2,650,000 3, 153,844 5,803,844 

2029-2033 12,210,000 14,382,71 1 26,592,71 1 
2034-2038 I i.850,000 11 ,183,650 23,633,650 
2039-2043 13,845,000 9,260,IOO 23.105, I 00 
2044-2048 17,175.000 5,771,000 22,946.000 
2049-2052 16,S IS1000 1,681 .800 18.196.800 

s 85,720,000 $ 59,617,533 s 145.337,5)) 

There are a number of limitat ions and restrictions contained in the general obligation bond indenture. Management has 
inr.licated that the District is in compliance with all signillcanl limitations and reslrictions at June 30, 2023. 

H. LEASES PAY ABLE 

The District entered into a 36 month lease agreement with Dell for a Sonic Wall in September of 2020. The annual fixed lease 
payment is $34,070 and includes interest at 0.2180%, 

The District entered into a 60 111011th lease agreement with Ricoh Company, Ltd for copiers in March of 2021. The monthly fixed 
lease payment is $4,232 and includes interest al .5270%. During the year, the District added an additional copier to this agrecrnenl. 

On Mny 3, 2022, the District entered into a 60 month lease agreement with Dell for a data protection appliance. The annual fixed 
lease payment is $16,296 and includes interest at 2. 1570%. 

On May 25, 2022, the District entered into a 60 month lease with Dell for the use of 11 server. The nnnunl fixed lease payment is 
$22,828 and includes interest at 2.1570%. 
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Schedule of changes in leases payable is as follows: 

Lcnscs; 

Governmental Activities: 
Ddl-SonicWnll 
Ricoh-Copiers 
Dell- Dorn Protection AppliMc, 
Dell-Server 
Addi1ionnl Ricoh-Copiers 

Totol GuvL~1m1e111~I Ac1lvhts 

lntcr--st Rntc 

0.2 i80% $ 

O.S270o/. 
2.1570% 
2. 1570% 
0.5270¾ 

s 

Bcginnin~ 
Boloncc 

67,916 
18.J.)89 
77,69j 

109,16j 

439,161 

s 

s 

Remaining obligations associated with leases arc as follows: 

Year Ended June 30, Prmcip3l Interest 
2024 $ 12 1,930 $ 3,883 $ 
2025 88,984 2,760 

2026 72,500 1,704 
2027 38,297 826 

$ 321,7 11 $ 9, 113 $ 

lncrcnscs Dctrctlics 

$ 3),922 
49,9)5 
15,877 
22,.S72 

6,060 1,20.S 
6,060 s 123,51 I ----

Towl 
Requ1remenls 

125,813 
91 ,744 

74,204 

39,123 
330,884 

s 

s 

Ending Bnl!l!lnoc 

1\11'\QUIII ; 0111: 

Within ()nc 

Year 

33.9?4 S 3l,994 
134,454 S0.199 
61,8 16 14,963 
86,S9 I 20,960 
4,8.S.S 1,814 

321.710 S _ ___ ,_21 .... 9..,30 ... 

I. SUBSCRIPTION-BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ARRANGEMENTS PAYABLE 

The District entered into a three year subscription with Blackboard Inc. for a web community manager on July 15. 2021 . On July I, 
2022 an initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of $32,477. The District is required to make annual fixed payments 
in the amount of$16,414. The subscription has an interest rate of2,024%. At June 30, 2023, the value of the right to use asset was 
$32,477 with accumulated depreciatior, of$ I 5,929. 

On July 28. 2022, the District entered into a 36 month subscription with Computer Solutions for the use o f wireless access point 
equipment, An initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of$62,821. 1·1ie District is required to make annual fixed 
payments or $20,950. The subscription has an interest rate of2. I 84%. Al June 30, 2023. the value of the right to use asset was 
$62,821 with accumulated depreciation of$19,370. 

On April I. 2023. the District entered into a 36 month subscription for Microsoft licenses. An initial subscription liability was 
recorded in the amount of$90,657. The District is required to make annual fixed payment of$30,986. The subscription has an 
interest rate of2.560%. At June 30. 2023, the value of the right lo use asset was $90,657 with accµmµl ated depreciation of$7,555. 

The District entered into a 36 month subscription with SchooL,inks use of a college & career readiness platform. On Ju ly I, 2022 an 
initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of$ 14,468. The District is required to make annual payments of$! 1,213. 
The subscription has an interest rate of 2.024%. At June 30, 2023, the value of the right to use asset was $ 19,218 with accumulated 
depreciation of $14,468 with accumulated depreciation of $6,678. 

The District entered into a subscl'iption agreement with TestHound fo r a test enablement software. On July I, 2022 an initial 
subscription liability was recorded in the imiount of $ 11 ,668. The District is required to make annual payments of $3,000. The 
subscription has an interest rate of 1.710%. At June 30, 2023, the value of the right to use asset was $11 ,668 with accumulated 
depreciation or $2,800. 

The District entered into n 36 month subscription with Power School LLC for the use of UT applicant tracking. On July I, 2022 an 
initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of $37,589. The District is required to make annual fixed payments of 
$18,538. The subscription has an interest rate of 2.024%. At June 30, 2023, the value of the right to use asset was $37,589 with 
accumulated depreciation of$18,795. 
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Schedule of changes in subscription-based information technology arrangements payable is as follows: 

Amounts 
lnlcrcsl 8cgin11ing E11di11g Due Wilhill 

Role Onlnncc Increases Decreases Balonncc One Year 
SHIT As: 

Goven1me111al Activillcs. 
BlackbonrJ Inc 2.0240% s 32,477 s $ 16,388 $ 16,089 $ 15,427 
Computer Solutions 2.1840% 62,821 19,370 43,4S I 20,940 
Microson 2.5600% 90,6S1 30,986 S9,671 29,<IS9 
SohooLinks 2.0240% l'f,468 7,282 7,186 5,988 
Test Hound 1.7100% 11 ,668 2,967 8,701 2,852 
PowerS~hool LLC' 2.0240% 37,589 18,5J8 19,051 19,051 

To!~I Oovcnunent3! Mt.fvhcs $ 96,202 $ 15l.478 $ 95,SJ l $ 154,149 $ 9J,717 

Fredericksburg 15D 

Remaining obligations associated with subscription-based information technology arrangements payable is as follows: 

Total 
Ye.It Elided J U1le 30, l'tineipal ln1etes1 Requirem~lilS 

2024 $ 93 ,717 s 2,495 $ 96,212 
2025 55,91Z 911 56,823 
2026 4,520 50 4.570 

s 154,149 s 3,456 $ 157,605 

J. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term Governmental activity fol' bonds and notes payable for the year ended June 30, 2023, was as follows (Exhibit 
A-1): 

Ouvs:a,nmnial ;;c1ivu,es 

General Oblia,,1ion Bonds $ 
Premium on Bonds 

L•~iCi PQynblc 
SBITA Poynbl~ 
Net Pension Liability 
Net OPllB Liability 

Begmnmg 

Bolancc 

ll.070.000 

4)9;161 

9u,20Z 
4,IJ0,405 

9.537.172 

26,272,940 Tu1.1l Long9Tcm1 Li.ibilittcs S =========== 

s 

s 

Endin~ 
Increases Decreases Balance 

77,820.000 4,170,000 s 8$.720,000 
4,917,164 141,29& 11,775,866 

(i,060 123.5 11 1i1 ,710 
I SJ,478 95,Sj I 154.1 4<1 

7,0S l ,28~ 817,0'.!3 10,394,666 
:l.509.693 6027.479 

89,977,986 s 8,857,056 $ I 07,393,570 

K. ACCUMULATED UNPAID VACATION AND SICK LEA VE BENEFITS 

,\ mounts 
Due W 1llun 

One Ycor 

$ 3.050.000 

121,9)0 
93,111 

s 3,26 5,647 

In accordance with GASB I 6, Accounting for Compensated Absences, sick leave and other compen~ated absence~ with 
similar chamcteristics should be accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by the employees bul only to the exlent it 
is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through cash payments conditioned on the 
employees' termination or retirement. 

The District's policy for vacation/non-duty days does not allow for accumulation. All available days must be used or lost 
yearly. Individuals may accumulate and carry over local sick leave up to sixty days. Any accumulation over sixty days 
is paid to the individual by June 30 ul the end of the year. Upon leaving the employment of the district for any reason, 
local sick days remaining arc lost except in certain circumstances. If an employee retires or resigns in good standing and 
provides ample notice, they will be paid by the end of June an amount equal to hnlf of a sub poy rate for the number of 
unused local sick leave days that are equal to the number of unused state days up to a maximum of sixty days. State 
personal days carry forward indefinitely with the district and move as available days with an employee to other districts 
as required by State law. Payment is not made or required to be made for unused state days. Accordingly, no liability 
was incurred or recorded for any days. 
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L DEFINED BENEFJT PENSION PLAN 

Frcdori~ksburg l;.fi 

Plm1 Descriptio11. Fredericksburg Independent School District paiticipatcs in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension that has a special funding situation. The plan is administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
(TRS). TRS's defined benefit pension plan is established and administered in accordance with the Texns Constitution, 
A1ticle XVI, Section 67 and Texas Government Code, Tille 8, Subtitle C. The pension trust fund is a qualified pension 
trust under Si;:ction 40 I (n) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Texus Legislature establishes benefits and contribution 
rates within the guidelines of the Texas Constitution. The pension's Board of Trustees docs not have the authority lo 
establish 01· amend benefit terms. 

All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in Texas who are employed for one-half or more of the 
standard work load nnd who are not exempted from membership under Texos Government Code, Title 8, Section 822.002 
arc covered by the system. 

Pe11sio11 Pim, Fid11ci"ry Net Position. Detailed information about the Teacher Rctin:mt:nl System's fiduciary net position 
is available in a separately issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. Thal report mny be obtained 011 the Internet at 
https://www.lrs.lcxas.gov/Pagcs/about publications.aspx. by writing lo TRS al 1000 Red River Street, Austin, TX. 
78701-2698, or by calling (512) 542-6592. 

Be111!fits Providl!d. TRS provides service and disability retirement, as well as death and survivor benefits, to cligiblr.: 
employees (and their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas. The pensior, formula is calculated using 2.3 
percent (multiplier) times the average of the five highest annual creditable salaries limes years of credited service to arrive 
at the annual standard annuity except for members who are grandfathered, the three highest annual salaries are used. The 
normal service retirement is nt oge 65 with 5 yen rs of credited service or when the sum of the member's age and years of 
credited service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is at age 55 with 5 years of service credit or earlier lhnn 55 with 
JO years of service credit. There nre additional provisions for early retirement if the sum of the member's age and years 
or service credit total nt least 80, but the member is less than ngc 60 or 62 depending on dnte of employment, or if the 
member was grandfathered in under a previous rule. There are no automatic post-employment benefit changes: including 
automatic COLAs. Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes, including ad hoc COLAs can be granted by the Texas 
Lcgislatun: as noted in the Plan description above. 

Texas Government Code Section 821 .006 prohibits beneflr improvements, it'. as a result of the particular· action, the time 
required to amortize TRS' unfunded actuarial liabilities would be: increased to a period that exceeds 31 years, or, ii.the 
amo1tization period already exceeds 31 years, the period would be increased by such action. Actuarial implications of the 
funding provided in th<.: mnnnc:r nre determined by the System's actuary. 

Co11trib11tiom. Contribution requirements arc established or amended pursuant to Article 16, section 67 of lhe Texas 
Constitution which requires the Texas legislature to establish a member contribution rate of not less than 6% of the 
member's annual compensation and a slale contribution rate of not less than 6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate 
annual compensation paid to members of the system during the fiscal year. 

Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402. The TRS Pension Reform Bill 
(Senate Bill 12) of the 86th Legislature amended Texas Government Code 825.402 for member contributions and increased 
employee nnd employer contribution rates tor fiscal years 2020 lhru 2025. 

Member 
Non•Employcr Conlrlbullug Entity (St11tc) 
Employc~rs • 

Contrjbution nntes 
19.ll 
8.0% 
7.75% 
7.75% 

Fredericksburg ISD - Current Fiscnl Year t:mploycr Contribution, 
Frcc.lcric!-sb11rg ISD - C11rrcnt Fistnl Yc~r l\<lcmbcr Contributions 
Fredericksburg ISO . 2022 Mca~urcmcni Year NECE On-behalf Contributions 

2022 
8.0% 
8.0% 
8.0% 

$ 933,345 
S 1,908,372 
S 1,333,230 

Contributors to the plan include members. employers and the State of Texas as the only non-employer contributing entity. 
The Stale is the employer for senior colleges, medical schools and slate agt:ncics including TRS. In each respective role, 
the State contributes to the plan in accordance with state statutes and the General Appropriations Act (GAA). 
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As the non-employer contributing entity for public education, the State of Texas con!ributes to the retirement system an 
amount equnl to the current employer contribution rate times the aggregate 11nnual compensation of all pnrticipnling 
members of the pension trust fund during that fiscal year reduced by the amounts described below which are paid by the 
employers. Employers including public schools are required to pay the employer contribution rare in the fol lowing 
instances: 

• On the portion of the member's salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entitled to the 
statutory minimum under Section 21.402 of the Texas Edueution Code. 

• During a new member's first 90 days of employment. 
• When any part or all of an employee's salary is paid by federal funding sources, a privately sponsored 

source, from non-educational and general, or local runds. 
• When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the employer shall 

contribute to the retirement system an amount equal to SO percent of the state contribution rate for cenain 
instructional or administrative employees and I 00 percent of the stute contribution rate tor all other 
employees, 

In addition to the employer contributions listed above, there arc two additional surcharges an employe1· is subject to. 
• All public schools, charter schools, 11nd regional educational si;rvicc centers must contribute 1.7 percent of 

the member's salary beginning in fiscal year 2022, gradually increasing to 2 percent in fiscal year 2025. 
• When employing a retiree of the Teacher Retirement System, the employer shall pay both the member 

contribution and the state contribution as an employment after retirement surcharge. 

Acttwrlfi! Asslilliptlo11s. The total pension liability in the August 31 , 2022 actu.irial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Single Discount Rate 
Long-term expected Investment Rate or Return 
Municipal Bond Rate as of August 2019 

Last year ending August 31 in 
Projection Period ( I OQ Years) 
Inflation 
Salary Increases 
Ad hoc Post Employment Benefit Changes 

August 31, 2021 rolled forv,ard to 
August 3 I, 2022 
Individual Entry Age Normal 
Fair Value 
7.00% 
7.00% 
3.91 %. Source for the rate is the Fixed 
Income Market Data/Yield Curve/Data 
Municipol Bonds with 20 years to maturity 
that include only federal tax-exempt 
municipal bonds as repmted in Fidelity 
Index 's ·'20-Ycar Municipal GO AA Index." 

2121 
2.30% 
2.95% to R.95% including inllation 
None 

lhe actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the total pension lh1bility ar~ the same assumptions used in the 
actuarial valuation as of August 31 , 2020. For a full description of these assumptions please see the actuarial valuation 
report dated November 9, 2020. 

Dlsco1111t Rftte. A single discount rare of7.00 percent was used to measure the total pension liability. The single discount 
rate was based on the expected rate of return on phm investments of 7.00 percent. The projection or cash flows used to 
determine this single discount rate assumed that contributions from active members, employers and the non-employer 
contributing entity will bi; made at the rates set by the Legislature during the 2019 legislative session. It is assumed that 
future employer and state contributions will be 8.50 percent of payroll in fiscal year 2020 gradually increasing lo 9.55 
percent of payroll over the next several years. This includes all employer and State contributions for active and rehired 
retirees. 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all future 
benefit payments of current r,lan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension pla.n investments 
was applied to all periods or projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The long-tcnn expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.25 percent. The long-term expected rate of return 
on plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class. These ranges arc combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the e-xpected future 
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real rutes of return by the target asset allocalion percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of geometric 
real rates of return for each major class included in the System's tat·get asset allocation as of August 31, 2022 are 
summarizt:d below: 

Asset Class 

Global Equify 

U.S. 

No11-U.S. Developed 

Emerging M nrkets 

Private Equity 11> 

S t11bk Value 

Govcmmcnl Bonds 

Absol1,1te Return rn 

Stable Value Hedge Funds 

Rral Return 

Rent Estate 

EnerSY and Natural Resources 

Commodities 

Risk Parity 

Risk Purity 

Asse I All ornll 011 Leve mge 

Cash 

Asset A llocmio11 Leverage 

In nation Exp cclilt ion 

Volnlility Drnu.<4> 

Toh,I 

Target 

Allocation (n 

18.00¾ 

13.00% 

9,00% 

14.00% 

16.00% 

0.00% 

S,00% 

15.00% 

600% 

0.00% 

8.00% 

2.00% 

-6.00% 

100¾ 
11> Absolute Return inlcudcs u Credit Sens it ive Investments. 

(1) Target nllocations nre bn.scd on the FY2022 policy model, 

Pl Capital Market Assump t ions come from Aon Hewiu (as ofS/31/2022) 

Long-Tenn 

Expected Arithmetic 

Reol Rate 
of Return()> 

4.60% 

4.90% 

5.40% 

7,70% 

1.00% 

3,70% 

3,40% 

4.10% 

5,10% 

J,60¾ 

4.60% 

3.00% 

J.60% 

(~> The volatility drag results fronl lite co1wefsio11 bet wee11 ,\tlitlunetic and geometric mean relums. 

E"-pected Contribution 

ro Long-Tenn 

Porfolio 

Returns 

1.12% 

0.90% 

0 .75% 

1.55%, 

0.22% 

0,00¼ 

0.18% 

0.94% 

0.37% 

0.00% 

0.43% 

0,01¾ 

•0.05% 

2.70% 

-0,9 1% 

8, 19% 

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The fo llowi ng schcduh: shows the impact of the Net Pension Liability if the 
discount rate used was I% less than and I% greater than the discount rate that was used (7.00%) in measuring the 
Net Pension Liability. 

I % Increase in Discount 1% Increase in 

Discount Rate Rutc Disc(>1,mt Rate 

(6.00%) (7.00%} (8.00%) 

f'redericksburg's proportionate share of the net 

pension liability : $ 16, 170,159 $ 10,394,666 $ s. 713,358 

Pl!11sio11 liahilitil!s, Pl!11sio11 E.l{pl!w;e, anti Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred /11flows of Resources Related 
to Pe11slo11s. At June 30, 2023, the Fredericksburg Independent School District reported a liability of$ I 0,394,666 for its 
proportionate share of the TRS 's net pension liabi lity. This liability renccts ii reduction for Stale pension support provided 
to the Fredericksburg Independent School District. The amount recognized by the Fredericksburg Independent School 
District as its proportionate share of the net pension liabi lity, the related State support. and the total portion of the net 
pension liabil ity that was associated with the Fredericksburg Independent School District were as fo llows: 
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District's Proportionate share of the collective net pcnsion liability 
State 's proportionate share that is associated with the District 
Total 

$ I 0,394,666 
$16.962-157 
$'.'17 ... JS.6.823, 

The net pension liability was measured as of August 31 , 2021 and rolled forward to August 31, 2022 and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer' s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the employer's contributions to the plan relative to the contributions 
of all employers to the plan for the period Septelllber I, 202 J thru August 31 , 2022. 

Al August 3 I, 2022 the employer's proportion of the collective net pension liability was .0175090384% which is an 
increase of .0012900381 % from its proportion measured as or August 31 , 2021 . 

Changes Since the Prior Actu11rial Valuation 

The actuarial assumptions and methods have been modified since the determination of the prior year's Net Pension 
Liability, These new assumptions were adopted in conjunction with the actuarial experience study. The primary 
assumption change was the lowering of the single discount rate from 7,25% to 7.00%, 

For the ycttr ended June 30. 2023, the Frcdericksburg Independent School District recognized pension expense of 
$2,758,598 and revenue of $1,621 ,390 for support provided by the Stale. 

At June 30, 2023, the Fredericksburg Independent School District reported its proportionate shnre of the TRS's deferred 
outtlows of resources and defe1·red intlows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Outt1ows of Inflows of 

Rc;.-sources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual actuarial experiences $ 150,722 $ 

Changes in actuarial assumptions 1,936.865 

Difference between projected and actual investment earn ings 1,026,960 
Changes in proportion and d iffcrcncc betwiccn the employer's 

contributions and the proportionate s hare of contributions 728,727 

Total as of August 31, 2022 measurement date $ 3,843,274 $ 

Contribulions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement date 804,405 

Total as of fiscal year-end $ 4,647,679 $ 

The net amounts of the employer's balances of deferl'ed outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions 

will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 
2024 $ 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 

TI1ercatler 

Pension 
Expense 
Amount 

692,643 
403,9 14 
234,425 

1,336, 106 
243,539 

I 

40 

226,623 

482,721 

. 

223,302 

932,646 

. 
932,646 
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M. DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN 

Fr~dericksburg 1;b 

Pla11 Descrlpf/011. The Fredericksburg Independent School District participates in the Texas Public School R..:lircd 
Employees Group Insurance Program (TRS-Carc). II is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined Other Post­
Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan that has a special funding situation. The TRS-Care progrnrn was established in 1986 
by the Texas Legislature. 

The TRS Boa1·d of Trustees administers the TRS-Care program and lhc related rund in accordance with Texos Insurance 
Code Chapter 1575, The Board of Trustees is granted the authority to establish basic and optional group insurance coverage 
for paiticipants as well as to amend benefit terms as needed under Chapter l S75.0S2. The Board may adopt rules, pl.ins, 
procedu1·es, and orders rensonably neci:ssury to administer the program, including minimum benefits and financing standards. 

OPEB Plau 'Pit111clary Net Pos/fio11. Detail information about the TRS-Care's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separate ly issued TRS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report that includes financial statements nnd required 
supplementary information. That repon may be obtained on the Internet at: 
h1tps://www.t1·s.texas.gov/Pages/about_publicalions.aspx: by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Str..:et. Austin, TX, 

78701-2698; or by calling (5 12) 542-6592. 

Be11ejifs Proi•Med. TRS-Care provides health insurance coverngc to retirees from public school district \vho are members 
of the TRS plmsion plan. Optional dependent coverage is available for an additional fee. 

Eligible non-Medicare retirees and their dependents not enrolled in TRS,Carc Standard, a high-dcduciiblc health plan. 
Eligible Medicare retirees and their dependents may enroll in the TRS•Care Medicai·e Advantage medical plan and the 
TRS-Cnre Medicare Rx prescripl'iOn drug plan. To qualify for TRS-Care coverage, a retiree must have at least 10 ycms 
of service credit in the TRS pension system. There are no automatic post-employment benefit changes; including 
automatic COLAs. 

The premium rates for retirees are reflected in the following table. 

Retiree* 
Retiree and Spouse 
Retiree* and Children 
Retiree and Familv 

*or surviving spouse 

TRS- Care Monthly for Retirees 
Medicare 

$ 135 $ 
529 
468 

1.020 

Non- Medicare 
200 
689 
408 
999 

Co11trlbuf/011s. Contribution rates for the TRS-Care plan nre established in state statute by the Texas Legislature. and 
there is no continuing obligation to provide benefits beyond each fiscal year. The TRS-Care plan is currently funded on 
a pay-as-you-go basis and is subject to change based on available f1.1nding, Funding for TRS-Care is provided by retiree 
premium contributions and contributions from the state. active employees, and school districts based upon public school 
district payroll. The TRS Board of trustees does not have the authority to set or a1nend contribution rates. 

Texas Insurance Code, section 1575.202 establishes the state's contribution rate which is 1.25 percent of the employee's 
salary. Section I 575.203 establishes the active employee's rate which is .65 rercent of pay. Section I S75.204 establishes 
an employer contribution rate of not less than 0.25 percent or not more than 0. 75 percent of the salary of each active 
employee of the public. The actual employer contribution rate is prescribed by the Legislature in the General 
Appropriations Act. The following table shows contributions to the TRS-Care plan by type of contributor. 

Active Employee 
Non~Employer Contributing Entity (State) 
Employers 

Contri.bution Rntes 

Federal/private Funding remitted by Employeu 

Fredericksburg JSD- Current Flsc11I Year Employer Contributions 
Fredericksburg ISD- Current Fiscal Year Member Contributions 
Fredericksburg ISO- 2022 Me11surement Ycnr NECE On-behillf 
Contributions 

41 

2022 
0.65% 
1.25% 
0.75% 
1.25% 

$219,978 
$155,055 
$252,212 

2023 
0.65% 
1.25% 
0.75% 
1.25% 
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In addition to the employer contributions listed above, there is an additional surcharge all TRS employers are subject to 
(regardless of whether or not they participate in the TRS Care OPEB program). When hiring n TRS retiree, employers are 
required to pay TRS Care, a monthly surcharge of $535 per retiree. 

TRS-Carc received supplemental appropriations from the State orTcxas as the Non-Employer Contributing Entity in the 
a111ount of $83 million in fiscal year 2022 from the Federal Rescue rJlm1 Act (ARPA) to help defray Covid-19 related 
health care costs during fiscnl year 2022. 

Acttwrlal A,m1111pt/o11$. The actuarial valuation was performed as of August 31 , 2021. Update procedures were used to 
roll forward the Total OPEB Liability to August 31 , 2022. The actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 

The actuarial valuation of the OPEB plan offered through TRS-Carc is similar to the actuarial vnluation performed for 
the pension pl1111, except that the OPEB valuation is more complex. The demographic .issun1ptions were developed in the 
experience study performed for TRS for the period ending August 31 , 2017. The following assumptions and other inputs 
used for members ofTRS-Care are based on the established pattern of practice and arn identical to the assumptions used 
in lhe August 31, 2021 TRS pension actuarial valualion that was rolled fol'Wnrd to August 31 , 2022: 

Rates ofM01taHty 
Rates of Retirement 
Rates of Termination 

Rates of Disability 
General lnCTation 
Wage Inflation 

The active mortality rates were based on 90 percent of the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables for males and females, 
with full generational mortality using Scale 813. The post-retirement rnmtality rates for healthy lives were based on the 
2018 TRS ofTexas 1-ieallhy Pensioner Mortality Tables, with 1\111 genernlional projection using the ultimate improvement 
rates from the most recently published scale MP-2018. 

A,fllifio1111/ Acflwrial Methods mu/ Assumptions: 
Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Inflation 
Single Discount Rate 
Aging factors 
Expenses 

Salary Increases 
Ad hoc post-employment benefit change~ 

August 31 , 2021 rolled forward lo August 31 , 2022 
Individual Entry Age Normal 
2.30% 
3.91% as of August 31 , 2022 
Based on plan specific experience 
Third-party udministrntive expenses related to the 
delivery of health care benefits arc included in the 
age-adjusted claims cost. 
2.30% to 9.05%. including inflation 
None 

Dfscottnt R(lte. A single discount rnte orJ.91 percent was used to meas\)re lhe total OPEB li.ibility. This was a decrease 
of 0.38 percent in the discount rate since the previous year. Because the plan is pay-as-you-go plan, the single discount 
rate is equal to the prevailing municipal bond rote. The projection of cash tlows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from active members and those of the contributing employers and the non-employer 
contributing entity al'e made at the statutorily required rntes. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to no/ be able lo make all future benefit payments of current plan membel's. Therefore, the 
municipal bond rate wa~ applied to all periods of projected benefit payments lo determine the total OPEB liability. 

The source of the municipal bond rate is the Fidelity ·'20-year Mu.nicipal GO AA Index" as of August 31, 202 1 using !he 
fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds. 

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis lhe following schedule shows the impact of the Net OPEB Liability if the discount 
rate used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used (3.91%) in measuring the Net OPEU 
Liability. 
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1% Decrease in Discounc 
Rate (2.91 %) 

Fr-edericksburg ISD • s 
proportionate share of the $ 7,106,876 
Net OPEB Liability: 

Frededck~bu;g ISD 

Currenr Single Discounc I% Increase in Discounc 
Race (3 .91 %) Rare (4.91 %) 

$ 6,027.479 $ 5,153,029 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, 111ul Deferred Outflows of Resources a11d Deferred /11flo,,1s of Resources Relatetl to 
OP£Bs. At June 30, 2023, the Fredericksburg Independent School District reported a liability of $6,027,479 for its 
proportionate shnre oflhc TRS's Net OPEB Liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State OPEB support provided 
to the Fredericksburg Independent School District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate sh,1re of 
the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability thnt was a~sociatcd with 
the Fredericksburg Independent School District were as follows: 

Fredericksburg ISD's Proportionate share of the collective Net OPEB Uability $ 6,027,479 
State's proportionate share thnl is associated with Fredericksburg !SD $ 7,352.578 
Total $ 13 380 057 

The Nel OPEB Liability was measured as of August 31 , 2021 and rolled forward to August 31, 2022 and the Tota.I OPEB 
Liability used to calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer's 
proportion of the Net OPEB Liability was based on the employer's contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the 
contributions of all employers lo the plan for the period September I, 2021 thru August 31, 2022. 

Al August 3 I, 2022 the employer's proportion of the collective Net OPEB Liability wns 0.025 1732281 %, which was an 
increase 0.0004491758% from its proportion measured as of August 31, 2021. 

He,tllhcure Co1·t Treml Rules Se11silhiity Analysis. The fol lowing present the net OPEB liabilily of the plan using the 
assumed healthcare cost trend rate, as well as what the net OPI~l3 liability would be ifit we1·e calculated using a trend rate 
that is one-percent.age poinl lower or onc-pcrccnli1ge point higher than the assumed healthcare cost trend rate. 

l % Decrease Current Healthcare I% Increase 
Cose Trend Rate 

Fredericksburg ISD's proportionate 
$ 4,966,670 $ 6,027,479 $ 7,402.682 share of rhe Net OPEB Liabilicy: 

Changes Since the Prior Actuari11I V11lu11tio11 - The following were changes to the actuarial assumptions or other inputs 
that affected rncasurcmcnl of the Total OPEB liability since the prior measurement period: 

• The discount rate changed from 1.95 percent as or August 3 I. 2021 to 3.91 percent as of August 31, 2022. This 
change increased Total OPEB Liability. 

Changes of Benefit Terms Since the Prior Measurement Date - There were no changes in benefit terms since the prior 
mensuremenl date. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Frededcksburg Independent School District recognized OPEB expense of 
$( 1,985,254) and revenue of$( 1,043,390) for support provided by the State. 

Al June 30, 2023, the Fredericksburg Independent School District reported its proportionate share of the TRS's deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other post-employment benefits from the following 
sources: 
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Def,mcd Outt1ows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and accual acruarial experience $ 335,101 $ 5,021,431 

Changes ln actuarial assumptions 918,104 4,187,534 

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 17,954 . 
Changes in proponion and difference between the employer's contributions and the 

270,834 832,219 
proportionate share of contributions 

Total as of August 31, 2()22 me-asurement date $ 1.541.999 $ 10,041.184 

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement oate 186,650 . 
T otal $ 1,728,649 $ 10,041,184 

The net amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPcB expense as fol lows: • 

fiscal yellr ended June 30, O P ES I;:xpen$c Amount 

2024 $ ( 1,596,084) 

2025 $ (1 ,596,022) 

2026 $ (1 ,340,419) 

2027 $ (994,372) 

2028 $ ( 1,087,979) 

T heri,i:,fter $ (1 ,884,309) 

N. MEDJCARE PART D-ON BEHALF PAYMENTS 

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, which was effective January I, 2006. 
established prescription drug coverage for Medicare beneficiaries known as Medicare Part n. One of the provisions of 
Medicare Part D allows for the Texas Public School Retired Employee Group Insurance Program (TRS-Care) to receive 
drug subsidy payrnents from the iederal government to offset certain prescription drug expenditures for el igible TRS­
Carc participants. Payments made on behalf to Fredericksburg Independent School District for fiscal years 2021, 2022, 
and 2023 were $ 102,345, $98,441 , and $128,571 respectively. 

O. LITIGATION 

The District is occasionally involved in various legal actions. Attorneys for the District indicate there is none 

as of June 30, 2023. 

P. SIGNFJCIANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The District participates in numerous State and Federal grant progrnms which are governed by various rules and 
regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs arc subject to audit and adjustment 
by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied with the rules and regulations governing 
the grants, if any, refunds ofany money received may be required and the collectability of any related receivable at June 
30, 2023 may be impaired. In the opinion or the District, there were no signi ti cant contingent liabi lities relating to 
compliance with rules and regulations governing the respective grants. therefore, no provision has been recorded in the 
accompanying combined fi nancial statements for such contingencies. 

The District entered into the fo llowing contracts for the 2022 Bond Project- Fredericksburg !SD New Middle School: 

• In April or 2023, the District entered into a contract with Alpha Testing. The total contract is for $156,482. 
The balance as of June 30, 2023 was $ I 23,670. 

• In July of 2022, the District entered into a contract with Huckabee & Associates, Inc. The total contract is for 
$4,004,749. The balance as of June 30, 2023 was $989,579. 

• In March of 2023, the District entered into a contract with Statterfield & Pontikes Construction, Inc. The total 
contract is for $66,307,367. The balance as of June 30, 2023 was $63,676.846. 
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• In February of 2022 the District entered into an agreement with Lockwood. Andrews & Newman. Inc. for 
project management services. The total agreement was for $2,218,000. The balance as of June 30, 2023 was 
$1 , 179, 160. 

• In June of 2023 the District entered into an agreement with EMA Engineering & Consulting, Inc. The total 
agreemenl and balance as of June 30, 2023 was $93,000. 

Q. GENERAL FUND FEDERAL SOURCE REVENUES 

Federally financed programs arc generally accounted for in the Special Revenue Funds of the District, except for SI-IARS, 

JROTC salary reimbursements and indirect costs charged to federal progrnms which are accounted for in the General 
Fund as prescribed by the TEA. The District recognized in the General Fund such revenues for the year ended June 30, 

2023, from various federal sources as follows: 

Program or Source 
SI-IARS 
Navy-JROTC Prngram 
lndil·ect Costs: 
ESEA Title I, Part A 
ESEA T itle II, Part A 
ESSA Title Ill , Part A, ELA 
IDEA - Part B, Formula 
IDEA - Part B, Preschool 
Title IV, Part A. Subpart I 
Food Service fund 
Career and Technical 
ESSER 

Total 

Amount 
$ 569,740 

67,389 

24,826 
4,525 
2,289 

26,473 

97 
1,855 

169,526 
1,551 

868,271 

Indirect cost revenues were determined by applying approved indirect cusls rates lo allowable applicable expenditures 

o r federally funded grant programs. 

R. UNEARNED/UNAVAILABLE REVENUE 

Unearned and unavailable revenue (Exhibits C-1 and 1-1- I) at year-end consisted of the following: 

Special Debt 
Genet:il Revenue Service 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

U nnvnllablc- s s s s 
Property la~cs 1,659.376 178.443 1.837.819 

Une~rned• 
School Nu1ri1 ion 40,278 40,278 
State Program Revenues 
Tuition 
Restricted Contributions 106,732 [06,732 

Tot~I $ 1,766,108 $ 40,278 s 178,443 $ 1,984,829 
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S. REVENUE FROM LOCAL AND INTER MEDIA TE SOURCES 

Fredericksburg ISD 

During the current year, revenues from local and intermediate sources (Exhibit C-3 and H-2) consisted of the following, 

Sp.e,al Debi S.rv,c• Capdal 
GOtlcrnl Fund Rovcnuo Fund Fund l'rojcc,s Fund Total 

Propcny Tn'°" Sl,026,715 s $ 6,464.2~8 $ s 5~.490,973 
Pen.iHiC$ & lntt;:IC$! .1?1,140 41 ,o,6 432,776 

Donat ions/Oins 216,776 19,700 236,476 

SpL'C1a! Educ,u1n11 Coup 6,000 1,623,034 1,629,0J<I 
lnvos1mmt 11100,no: 1,256, 178 •17,997 J 15,075 2,985,282 4,604,$32 

Facility Rcmol 8l,!46 8).146 
InsurMcc Recc,very V56 2,356 

Tuition .1ncl Jiee.J 159,7.l0 159,730 

Jioad Saleo5 734,554 7)11,55•1 

Cr,,npus AG11v,1y Fund 279,601 279,601 

Co-cutl'kular Activnies !S0,117 U0, 11 7 
01hcr 161,286 178 MJ I l6<i,495 

Tola! s 54,453,444 s 2,705,064 $ 6,826,000 s 2,985/282 s 66,%9,790 

T. JOINT VENTURE - SHARED SERVJCE ARRANGEMENT 

The District is the fiscal agent for a Shared Services Arrangement ("SSA") which prnvides for the efficient delivery of 
legally required special education and related services to eligible students with disabilities from the member districts. In 
addition to the District, other member districts include Comfort ISD, Harper ISD, and Doss CCSD. All services are 
provided by the flsr,;a l agent. The member districts provide the funds lo the fiscal agent. 

According 10 guidance provided in TEA's Resource Guide, the District has accounted for the fiscal agent's activities of 
lhe SSA in Special Revenue Fund 437 (Exhibit H-2), Shared Services Arrangements-Special Education and is accounted 
for using Model 3 in the SSA section of the Resource Guide. Expenditures of the SSA are summarized below: 

Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Comfort 11,dependenl School District 
Harper Independent School District 
Doss CCSD 

U. INSURANCE COVERAGE 

$ 

$ 

l.155A33 
330,222 
138,684 
13,694 

1,638,033 

During the fiscal year, Fredericksburg ISO participated in die T ASB Risk Management Fund's (the Fund's) Prope11y Casualty 
Progrnm with coverage in: 

Auto Liability 
General Liability 
Property 

Auto Physical Damage 
Legal & School Liability 
Privacy & Information Security 

The Fund was created and is operated under the provision oflhe lntcrlocal Cooperation Act. Chapter 791 oCthe Ti:xas Government 
Code. All members participating in the Fund execute lnterlocal Agreements that define the responsibilities of the parties. 

The Fund purchases stop-loss coverage for protection against catastrophic and larger than anticipated claims for the Property 
Casualty Program. The terms and limits of the stop-loss program vary by line of coverage. The Fund uses the services of an 
independent actuary to determine the adequacy of reserves and fully funds those reserves. For the current fiscal year, the fund 
anticipates Fredericksburg ISD has no additio11al liability beyond the contractual obligations for payment of contributions. 

The Fund engages the services of an independe11t auditor to conduct a financial audit after the close of each plan year on August 
31. The audit is accepted by the Fund's Board ofTrustei:s in February or the following year. The Fund's audited financial statements 
as of August 31 , 2022, are available at the TASB offices and have been filed with the Texas Department of lnsurnncc in Austin. 

V. RECAPTURE PAYMENTS TO THE STATE 
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In the 2004-2005 fiscal year, the District was designated a property weallhy district by the State. To thnt e1\d. the District must share 
its local property tax revenue with the State or other districts. The District passed the necessary election to authorize payment of tax 
revenues to another district 01· to the State. Following are the recapture payments and percentage of local property tax revenue made 
for the past ten years: 

2013,20 14 5,107.694 21.51% 
2014-2015 5.374,882 21.1 0% 
2015-2016 5.258,645 22.82% 
2016-201 7 7,119,606 25.47% 
2017-2018 9,738,005 30.84% 
2018-20 19 12,9 15,801 33.94% 
2019-2020 13,355,333 33.33% 
2020-2021 16,004,619 38.70% 
2021-2022 17,882,878 34.46% 
2022-2023 23,656.059 40.44% 

1'otal to Date $ 116,413,522 

The linancial calculation for sharing local property tax revenue is strictly based on wealth per average daily attendance. The amount 
that the district spends is not relevant, only the tax revenues collected nnd the number of weighted students attending FISD schools. 
The appraisals cannot be lowered so that the tax revenues are lower because the local appraisal district is charged to appraise 
properties based on market value. The Texns Stnte Comptroller's oftlce verifies the market values annually. If the local appraisal 
district docs not value within a certain range of the state's calculations. the: stale will presurne their values are accurate and will use 
their values instead of the local appraisal values. Recapture payments would still be due to the State based on those calcul11tions 
and the District would receive less tax revenue and have less to spend on the education of the local students. 

W, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The District provides opportunitie-s for employees to participate in elective employee paid benefits such as dental, disability, life, 
accident. emergency lrnnsport, cancer insurnnces. Additionally, the district provides these benefits: 

Social Security 
The District participates in a Section 218 Agreement with the IRS for non- professional employees. This voluntary agreement 
bciwcen the District and the Social Security Administration was established to provide Social Security and Medicare Hospital 
Insurance (1-1 1) or Medicare coverage only for non-professional employees of the District. All employees un: covered for lhe 
Medicare. This agreement is authorized under Section 218 of the Social Security Act. Employees covered under a Section 218 
Agreement have the same coverage and benefit rights as employees in the private sector. The District contributed to the Social 
Security insurance plan as follows: 

Year Ended 6/30/19 
Year Ended 6/30/20 
Year Ended 6/30/21 
Year Ended 6/30/22 
Year Ended 6/30/23 

Emtlloyee Health Care Coverage 

$ 668.759 
$ 
$ 
$ 

634.540 
787,107 
753,349 

$ 745,917 

The District utilizes TRS-ActivcCarc, the statewide health coverage program for public education employees established by the 77th 
Texas Legislature in 2002. Of the more than one thousand school districts/entities eligible to participate in TRS-ActiveCare. over 
90 percent do so. The District employees are eligible to participate in one of three PPO plan options administered by BlueCross 
BlueShield and WellSystems and Caremark. 

TRS-ActiveCare is a self-funded program. not an insured plan. Rates and benefits arc not determined by the vendors administering 
the program, but are established by the TRS Trustees based on the claims experience of the plan. 
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During the year the District contributed $285.00 per month towurd the plun premiums for each enrolled employee. 
Contributions to health care coverage for e111ployees a1·e as follows: 

Year Ended 6/30/19 
Year Ended 6/30/20 
Year Ended 6/30/21 
Year Ended 6/30/22 
Yenr Ended 6/30/23 

Workers' Compensation Pool 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

898,725 
953,865 
806,507 
829,448 
962.748 

During the fiscal year, Fredericksburg ISD met its statutory workers' compensation obligations through participation in the TASB 
Risk Management Fund (the Fund). The Fund was created and is operated tmder the provisions of the.: lntcrlocnl Coop..:ration Act, 
Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code. The Fund's Workers' Compensation Program is authorized by Chapter 504, Texas 
Labor Code. All districts pnrticipating in the Fund execute.: lntcrlocal Agreements that define the responsibilities of the parties. The 
Fund provides statutory workers' compensation benefits to its members and their injured employees, 

The Fund and its mcmbc,:rS arc.: protected against higher than c,:xpcctcd claims costs through the purchase of stop loss coverage for 
any claim in excess of the Fund's self-insured retention of $2 million. The Fund uses the services of an independent actuary to 
determine reserve adequacy and fully funds those reserves. As or August 31 , 2021, the Fund carried a discounted reserve of 
$44,985.187 for future development on reported claims and claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. For the current 
ti seal year, the Fund anticipated no additional liability to members beyond their contractunl obligations for payment of contributions. 

The Fund engages the services of an independent auditor to conduct a financial audit aller the close of each plan year on August 
31. The audit is approved by the Fund's Board of Trustees in February of the following year. The Fun.d's audited fi11.incial statements 
as of August 31, 2022, are available on the TASB Risk Manugc.:mc,:nt Fund website and havc been filed with the Texas Department 
of Insurance in Austin. 

Unemployment Compensntion Pool 
During the fiscal year, Fredericksburg LSD provided w1employme11t compensation coverage to its employees thl'Ough participation 
in the TASB Risk Management Fund (the Fund). The Fund was created and is opcrakd under the provisions of the lnterlocnl 
Cooperation Act, Chaplet· 791 of the Texas Govern111ent Code. 'Ille Fund's UJ1employme11t Compensation Program is authorized by 
Section 22.00S of the Texas Education Code 1111d Chapter 172 of the Texas Local Government Code. All men1bers participating in 
the Fund execute lntcrlocal Agreements that define the responsibilities of the parties, 

The Fund meets its quarterly obligation to the Texas Workforce Commission. Expenses are accrued monthly until the quurterly 
payment has been made. Expenses can be reasonably estimated; therefore, there is no need for specific or aggregate stop loss 
coverage for Unemployment Compensation pool. for the current llscal year, the Fund anticipates that the District has 110 additional 
liability beyond their contractual obligation for payment of contribution. 

The Fund engages the services of an indcpendcni auditor to conduct a financial audit artcr the close of cuch plan yenr on August 
31. The audit is accepted by the Fund's Board of Trustees in February of the following year. The Fund's audited financial 
statements as of August 31, 2022, are available on the TASB Risk Management Fund website and have been filed with the Texas 
Dc,:partmcnt of Insurance in Austin. 

X. LEASE RECEIVABLE 

In August of 2017, the district entered into an interlocal office lease agn:cmcnt with Gillespie Central Appraisal District. 
The lease agreement is $6,000 per month for 180 months ending August 3 I, 203 l . The lessee has two extension options, 
each for 60 months. The lease has nn interest rate of I. 5510%. The value of the lease receivable at year end was 
$1 , 188,661 and the deferred inflow of resources related to the lease were $1 ,172,834 at June 30, 2023 . 

Y. NEGATIVE UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 

The unrestricted net position for the governmental activities reflects a large negative balance in the amount of ($1 ,611 ,232). 
This is due to the implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 regarding Net Pension Liability and No. 75 regarding Other 
Post-Employment Benefits. The District was required to recognize their proportionate share: of the TRS Pension Plan liability. 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources, as well as the TRS Care Plan liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows 
of resources. 
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Z, EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

Fredericksburg ISO 

Expenditures in the General Fund exceeded the budget appropriations in four functions but not in total. 

AA. ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARD 

During fiscal yeor 2023, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 96 S11bscriptio11-Based ln/ormalion Technology 
Arrangements. The implementation of this standard establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset (an 
intangible asset) and a corresponding subscription liability. The standard require-s recognition of right·to•use subscription 
assets and liabilities for SBITAs that previously were classified as operating expenditures based on the payment provisions 
of the contract. 

BB. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The District has evaluated subsequent events through November I 0, 2023, the date which the financial statements were 
available to be issued. The District is not nware of any subsequent events that materially impact the financial statements. 
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EXHIBIT G-1 
FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Diltn Atl\lnl Amounts Vurinncc With 

Control Budgeted Amounts 
(GAAP BASIS) Final Budget 

Codes 
Positive or 

Original f-inul (Negative) 

REVENU"'.S: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources $ 50,364,587 $ 53,874,639 $ 54,453,444 $ 578,805 

5800 Stale Progrnm Revenues 2,932,082 3,509,965 3,471 ,687 (38,278) 

5900 Federal Program Revc11ucs 765,000 850,041 868,27 1 18,230 

5020 Total Revenues 54,06 1,669 58,234,645 58,793,402 558,757 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

001 I fnstruction 17,795,301 16,960,241 16,280,367 679,874 

0012 Instructional Resources a11d Media Services 268,38 1 26 1,08 1 252,055 9,026 

0013 Curriculum and lnstmctional Staff Development 63,350 86,577 61,730 24,847 

002 1 Instructional Leadership 431 ,530 858. 12 1 823.766 34.355 
0023 School leadership 1,966, 106 t,007,707 1,148,962 258,745 

0031 Gui<lo.11ce, Counselii1g, and Evaluation Services 848,934 860,481 850,79 1 9,690 

0032 Social Work Services 76,824 76,824 4,536 72,288 

0033 Health Services 301,394 395,471 368,95 I 26,520 

0034 Student (Pupil) Tran5p()rtation 1,204,671 1,170,966 1,076,975 93,99 1 

0036 Extracurricular Activities 1,733,409 1,844, 168 1,704,932 139,236 

0041 General Administration 1.484.297 1.548.128 1,433.175 114,953 

0051 Facilities Maintenance and Operations 3,666,559 3,882,572 3,703,967 178,605 
0052 Security und Monitoring Services l09,605 566,727 549, 163 17,564 

0053 Data Processir1g Service.s 688,485 819,372 742,695 76,677 

0061 Community Services 293. 125 403.680 408,665 (4.985) 

Debt Scrvic1:; 
0071 Principal 011 Long•Term Liabilities 172,261 215,071 (42,810) 

0072 hllerest on Lo11g•Ter111 Liabilities 1,675 1.759 (84) 

Capital Outlay; 
0081 Focilitics Acquisition and Construction 1,146,196 479,895 666,301 

Intergovernmental: 
009 1 Contracted h1stn1ctional Services Between Schools 2 1,065,383 24,000,382 23,679,066 321,3 16 

0092 Incremental Costs Associated with Chapter 4 1 36,000 36,000 27,000 9,000 

0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 1.328,315 1,328.315 I, 155,433 172,882 

0099 Other hlkrgovernmenlnl Charges 700,000 700,000 723,384 (23,384) 

6030 Total Expenditures 54,061 ,669 59, 126,945 56,292,338 2,834,607 

11 00 Excess (Deflcie11cy) of Revenues Over (Under) (892,300) 2,50 1,064 3,393,364 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7913 Proceeds of Right-to-Use Lease 159,538 159,538 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances (892,300) 2,66o.602 3,552,902 

0100 Fund Balance. July I (Beginning) 15,826,972 1 S,826,972 15,826,972 

3000 Fund Balance• June 30 (Ending) $ 15,826,972 $ 14,934,672 $ 18,487,574 $ 3,552,902 
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FREDERICKSBURG fNDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE D1STRlCT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 

District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liabi I ily (Asset) 

District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pen~ion Liability (Asset) Associated with 
the District 

Total 

District's Covered Payroll 

District's Proportionate Shure of the Net Pension Linbilily (Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

' 
Pion fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 

Plan Year 2022 Plan Year 2021 Plan Year 2020 

0.017509038% 0.016219% 0,015517105% 

$ 10,394,666 $ 4, 130,405 $ 8,310,645 

16,962,157 8,065,471 17,631,018 

$ 27,356,823 $ 12, 195,876 $ 25.941,663 

$ 23,615,953 $ 22,862,345 $ 22,662,789 

44.02% 18.07% 36.67% 

75.62% 88.79% 75.54% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P20. I 83 requires that the information on this schedule be data from the period corresponding with the 
periods covered as of the measurement dates of August 3 I, 2022 for year 2023, August 31 , 2021 for year 2022, August 31. 2020 for year 
2021 , August 3 I, 2019 for yei1r 2020. August 3 I, 2018 lor yenr 20 I 9, August 3 I, 20 I 7 for year 2018, August 3 I, 2016 for year 2017. 
August 3 1, 2015 for year 2016 and August 31, 2014 for year 2015. 

This schedule shows only the years for which this information is available. Additional infom,ation will be added until IO years of data 
arc available and reported. 
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EXHIBIT G-2 

FY2020 FY2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 
Plan Year2019 Plan Year2018 Plan Year 20 17 Plan Year 20 16 Plan Year 2015 Plan Year 2014 

0.015340443% 0.016151168% 0.017369688% 0.017432007% 0.0172795% 0.0125887% 

$ 7,974,442 $ 8,889,995 $ 5,553,890 $ 6,587,296 $ 6, 108,073 $ 3,362,617 

15,982,907 17.90 1.5 14 10,914,881 13.438,432 12.882,586 I 1,068,6 12 

$ 23.957,349 $ 26. 791,509 $ 16,468.771 $ 20,025,728 $ 18,990,659 $ 14,431,229 

$ 21 ,571 ,722 $ 21 ,959,531 $ 21 ,951 ,811 $ 22,804,569 $ 22,489,371 $ 20,241,241 

36.97% 40.48% 25.30% 28.88% 27.16% 16.61% 

75.24% 73.74% 82.17% 78.00% 78.43% 83.25% 
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FREDERlCKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DlSTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PENSIONS 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023 

2023 2022 2021 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 933,345 $ 797,207 $ 685,789 

Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution (933,345) (797,207) (685,789) 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 
$ - $ - $ 

District's Covered Payroll $ 23,856,391 $ 24,071,827 $ 22,876,555 

Contributions as a Percentuge of Covered Payroll 3.91% 3.31% 

Note: OASB Codification, Vol. 2, P20. I 83 requires that the data in this schedule be presented ns orthe District's respective fiscal years ns 
opposed to the time periods t.:overed by the measurement dates ending August 31 of the preceding year. 

This schedule shows only the years for which this information is available. Additional information will be added until IO years of data are 
available and reported. 

S3 
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EXHIBJT G-3 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

$ 627,768 $ 539,750 $ 553,415 $ 462,233 $ 502,958 $ 448,455 

(627,768) (539,750) (553,415) (462,233) (502,958) (448 455) 

$ - $ - $ - $ • $ • $ 

$ 22.507,4 19 $ 21.363, 794 $ 22,048,830 $ 22,804,569 $ 22,489,37 1 $ 2 1,241 ,24 1 

2.79% 2.53% 2.51% 2.02% 2.22% 2. 11 % 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABLUTY 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 

District's Propotiion of the Net Liability (Asset) for Othet· Postemployment 
Benefits 

Districl's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 

State's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) Associated with 
the District 

Total 

District's Covered Payroll 

District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) as a Percentage 
of its Covered Payroll 

Phm Fiduciary Net Position as a Pcn:entagc of the Total OPEB Liability 

Plan Year 2022 Plan Year 202 1 Plan Year 2020 

0.025 173228% 0.024724052% 0.024655365% 

$ 6,027,479 $ 9,537,172 $ 9,372,6 18 

7,352,578 12,777,685 12,594,55 I 

$ 13,380,057 $ 22.3 14.857 $ 2 1,967,169 

$ 23.615.953 $ 22,862.345 $ 22,662,789 

25.52% 41.72% 41.36% 

11.52% 6. 18% 4.99% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P50.238 states that the information on this schedule should be determined as of the measurement date. 
The amounts for FY 2023 are for the measurement date of August 3 I, 2022. The amounts reported for FY 2022 are for measurement date 
August 31, 202 I. The amounts reported for fY 2021 are for the measurement date of August 31, 2020. The amounts for FY 2020 nre for 
the measurement date August 3 1, 2019. The amounts for FY 201 9 are tor the measurement date August 3 1, 2018, The nmounts for FY 
20 18 nre based on lhc August 3 l , 20 I 7 mcusurcmcnl dale. 

This schedule shows only the years for which this information is available. Additional infonnation will be added until IO years of dntn ore 
available and reported, 

55 



EXHIBIT G-4 

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 
Plan Year 2019 Plan Year2018 Plan Year 20 17 

0.025562079% 0.026692921 % 0.026902808% 

$ 12,088,618 $ 13,328,020 $ 11,699,022 

16,063,072 18,479,026 17,249, 115 

$ 28, 15 1,690 $ 31 ,807,046 $ 28,948, 137 

$ 21,571,722 $ 2 1,959,53 1 $ 21 ,95 1,81 I 

56.04% 60.69% 53.29% 

2.66% 1.57% 0.91% 



FREDERJCKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 
FOR F£SCAL YEAR 2023 

2023 2022 202 1 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 219,978 $ 204, 131 $ 193,579 

Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution (219,978) (204, 13 IJ ( I 93,579) 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 
$ . $ - $ 

District's Covered Payroll $ 23,856,391 $ 24,071 ,827 $ 22,876,555 

Contributions ns a Percentage. of Covered Payroll 0.92% 0.85% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P50.238 requires th;il the dat;i in this schedule be presented as of the District's respective fiscal years as 
opposed to the time periods covered by the measurement dates ending August 31 of the preceding year. 

Information in this schedule should be provided only for the years where data is available. Eventually 10 ytars of data should be presented. 
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0.85% 



EXHIBIT G-5 

2020 2019 2018 

$ 185,95 1 $ 181,53 I $ 178,347 

( 185,95 1) ( 181 ,531) ( 178,347) 

$ • $ • $ 

$ 22,507,4 19 $ 2 1,363,794 $ 22,048,830 

0.83% 0.85% 0.81% 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INfORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Changes of Be11efit Terms 
There were no changes or benefit terms lhnl affeckd measurement oflhe total pension llability during the measurement pedod. 

Cha1,ges of Asm111ptio11s 
The actuarial assumptions and methods have been modified since the detcl'mination of the prior year's Net Pension Liability. 
These new assumption were adopted in conjunction with an actuarial experience study. The primary assumption change was 
the lowering of the single discount rate from 7,25 to 7.00 percent. 

B. Other Post-Employment Benefit Pl9r1 

Clumges /11 B!mejlt Terms 
There were no changes of benefit terms during the measurement period that affected the Total OPEB liability. 

Changes i11 Ass11mptio11s 
The fo llowing assumptions, melhocls and plan changes which are specific to TRS-Care were updnted from the prior year's 
report: 

• The single discount rate changes from 1.95 percent as of August 31, 202 1 to 3.9 1 percent. as of August 31. 2022. 
Lower pnrticipntion rates and updates to the health care trend rate assumption were also factors that decreased the 
Total OPEB Liability. 
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COMBINING AND OTHER STATEMENTS 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2023 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

ASSETS 

1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
1120 Investments - Current 
1220 Property Taxes - Delinquent 
12Jo Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
1240 Due from Other Governments 
1260 Due from Other Funds 
1300 Inventories 
141 o Prepayments 

1000 Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
21 ! o Accounts Payable 
2 150 Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable 
Zl60 Accrued Wages Payable 
2170 Due to Other Funds 
2300 Uneamed Revenue 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
2601 Unavailable Revenue· Property Taxes 
2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable Fund Balance: 

341 o Inventories 
Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Re~triction 
3480 Retirement of Long-Term Debt 
3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 
351 o Construction 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

$ 

$ 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 

60 

205 211 
ESEA I, A 

Improving 

224 
IDEA - Part 8 

formula 

Head Start Basic Program 

240 
Nationnl 

Breakfast and 
Lunch Program 

31,231 $ 

37,551 

68,782 $ 

- $ 
3,370 

65,4 12 

68,782 

68,782 $ 

$ 45,547 $ 614,857 

145,328 

1,233,130 

3,219 
44,806 

145,328 $ 45,547 $ 11896,012 
==---

4,950 $ 
4,334 

64,143 
71,90 I 

145,328 

- $ 
1,85 1 

43,696 

45,547 

19,770 
2,099 

99,435 
171,742 
40,278 

333,324 
-----

44,806 

1,517,882 

1,562,688 

145,328 $ 45,547 $ 1,896,01 2 
= ==== 



EXHIBIT H-1 (Cont'd) 

242 244 255 263 280 281 282 289 
Summer Carc:er and ESEA 11,A Title Ill, A ESSER Ill ESSER II ESSER Ill Other Federal 
Feeding Technical• Training and English Lang. Homeless CRRSAAel ARP Act Special 
Program Basic Grant Recruiting Acquisition Childrcn Supplemental Revenue Funds 

$ . $ . $ . $ - $ - $ - $ . $ 

20,138 14,282 76,810 15,444 50 159,584 299,786 22,472 

592 

2,500 880 

$ 20,730 $ 16,782 $ 77,690 $ 15,444 $ 50 $ I 59,584 $ 299,786 $ 22,472 

$ - $ 818 $ 2,493 $ - $ - $ - $ . $ 

29 2,628 412 3, 177 9,558 275 
3,708 17,345 8,265 73,735 174,364 17,046 
3,918 15,964 55,224 6,767 50 82,672 115,864 5, 151 

7,655 16,782 77,690 15,444 50 159,584 299,786 22,472 

13,075 

13,075 -----

$ 20,730 $ 16,782 $ 77,690 $ 15,444 $ 50 $ 159,584 $ 299,786 $ 22,472 -----
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FREDERJCKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRJCT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2023 

364 365 
Data 

Control 

Codes 

313 

SSA 
314 

SSA SSA - IDEA B SSA - IDEA B 

ASSETS 
111 0 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
1120 Investments - Current 
1220 Property Taxes - Delinquent 
mo Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
1240 Due from Other Governments 
1260 Due from Other Funds 
1300 Inventories 
141 o Prepayments 

1000 Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
2110 Accounts Payable 
2150 Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 
2170 Due to Other Funds 
2300 Unearned Revenue 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable Fund Balance: 

34 1 o Inventories 
Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 
3480 Retirement ofLong"Term Debt 
3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 
351 o Constrnction 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

$ 

$ 

$ 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Jntlows & Fund Balances $ 

62 

IDEA, Part B IDEA, Part 8 
Formula Preschool 

- $ $ 

453,242 97 

453,242 $ 97 $ 

- $ 
4,452 

86,695 
362,095 

453,242 

453,242 $ 

$ 

97 

97 

97 $ 
===== 

Formula 

ARP Act 

• $ 

78,186 

78,186 $ 

Preschool 
ARP Act 

9,845 

9,845 
= ==== 

5,230 $ 

72,956 9,845 

78, 186 9,845 -----

78,186 $ 9,845 



EXHIBIT I-1-1 (Cont'd) 

386 410 429 437 461 Total 599 690 
Regional Day State Other Sta~e SSA Campus Nonmajor Debt Local 

School for Instructional Special Special Activity Special Service Capital 
the Deaf Materials Revenue Funds Education Funds Revenue Funds Fund Projects Fund 

$ - $ - $ - $ 147,586 $ 316,891 $ 1,156,112 $ 2,328,034 $ 

1,233,130 203,431 34,545 
187,835 
(9,392) 

8,943 2,677 5,905 1,350,340 22,620 
3,811 

44,806 
1,975 5,355 

$ 8,943 $ 2,677 $ . $ 155,466 $ 316,891 $ 3,793,554 $ 2,732,528 $ 34,546 

$ - $ - $ - $ 948 $ - $ 34,209 $ - $ 
2,993 35,178 

151 ,525 805,369 
8,943 2,677 985,866 

40,278 

8,943 2,677 155,466 1,900,900 

178,443 

178,443 

44,806 

1,530,957 
2,554,085 

316,891 316,891 

34,546 

3 16,89 1 1,892,654 2,554,085 34,546 

$ 8,943 $ 2,677 $ - $ 155,466 $ 3 16,891 $ 3,793,554 $ 2,732,528 $ 34,546 
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FREDERlCKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICi 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Onto 

Comrol 

Codes 

ASSETS 
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
1120 Investments - CmTent 
1220 Property Taxes - Delinquent 
1230 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
1240 Due from Other Governments 
1260 Due from Other Funds 
1300 Inventories 
141 o Prepayments 

I ooo Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
211 0 Accounts Payable 
21 so Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 
2110 Due to Other Funds 
2300 Unearned Revenue 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
260 1 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable Fund Balance: 

3410 Inventories 
Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 
3480 Retirement of Long-Term Debt 
3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 
3S Io Construction 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

JUNE 30, 2023 

$ 

698 
Capital 

Projects-

2018 l3ond 

- $ 

67 

Total Toial 
Nonmajor Non major 

Capital Governmental 

Project Funds Funds 

$ 3,484,147 
34,612 1,471,173 

187,835 
(9,392) 

1,372,960 
3,8 11 

44,806 
5,355 

$ 67 $ 34,613 $ 6,560,695 
========== 

$ - $ 

67 

67 

- $ 

67 

67 

34,209 
35, 178 

805,369 
985,933 
40,278 

1,900,967 

178,443 

178,443 

44,806 

1,530,957 
2,554,085 

316,891 

34,546 34,546 
-----

34,546 4,481,285 

4ooo Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 67 $ 34,613 $ 6,560,695 
=====------== 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Data 

Control 
Codc5 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

0011 Instruction 
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 
0013 Cu1Ticulu111 and Instructional Staff Development 
002 t Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
0031 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 Health Services 
0035 Food Services 
0036 Extracurricular Activities 
0041 General Administration 
0051 Facilities Maintenance and Operation:; 
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 
0061 Community Services 

Debt Service: 
0011 Principal on Long-Term Liabi lities 
0012 Interest on Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Capital Outlay: 
0081 Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

I ntergovemmental: 
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7915 Transfers In 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0 100 Fund Balance - July I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance• June 30 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

65 

205 

Head Stnrt 

• $ 

2 1 I 

ESEA J, A 
Improving 

Busic Pro~/am 

• $ 

372,000 578,307 

224 240 

IDEA· Pnn B National 
Fonnula Breakfost and 

Lunch Program 

- $ 781,692 
56,302 

286,597 1,314,220 - - - - -------------
372,000 578,307 2$6,597 2, 152,214 

334,901 

37,099 

372,000 

• $ 

504.347 
49,257 

4,950 
14,565 

5, 188 

221,888 

64,709 

1,82 1,733 

578,307 286,597 1,821,733 ---- - - ----

- $ - $ 

330,481 

330,481 

1,232,207 

1,562.688 



242 
Summer 
Feeding 
Program 

$ 605 $ 
268 

22,832 

23,705 

23,705 

23,705 

13,075 

$ 13,075 $ 

244 
Career and 
Technical• 
Basic Grant 

. 

36,142 

36,142 

30,381 

3,0 16 

2,727 
18 

36,142 

$ 

• $ 

255 263 
ESEA 11,A Title III, A 

Training and English Lang. 
Recruiting Acquisition 

- $ - $ 

106,6 11 54,723 

106,61 I 54,723 

43.444 

81,947 7,876 
8,287 3,403 
9,268 
7,009 

100 

106,61 1 54,723 

• $ • $ 

66 

c XI-IIBIT H-2 (Cont'd) 

280 281 282 289 
ESSER Ill ESSER II ESSER HI Other Federal 

Homeless CRRSA Act ARP Act Special 

Children Supplemental Revenue Funds 

- $ - $ . $ 

3,505 478,727 1,076,870 60,083 

3,505 478,727 1.076.870 60,083 

3,505 458,243 1,039,108 11 ,632 
36,178 

866 
350 

893 
20.484 691 

47,235 

3.505 478,727 1,076,870 60,083 

• $ - $ • $ 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DfSTRlCT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Data 

Conlrol 
Code~ 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

so20 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current 

oo 11 I'nstruction 
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 
oo 13 Cu1Ticulum and Instructional Staff Development 
0021 Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
0031 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 Health Services 
0035 Food Services 
0036 Extracurricular Activities 
0041 General Administration 
005 I Facilities Maintenance and Operations 
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 
0061 Community Services 

Debt Service: 
001 1 Principal on Long-Term Liabilities 
0072 Interest on Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Capital Outlay: 
008 I Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

Intergovernmental: 
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 

6030 Total Expenditures 

11 oo Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7915 Transfersln 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0100 Fund Balance· July I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

67 

313 

SSA 
314 

SSA 
IDEA, Part D IDEA. Pa1i B 

Formula Preschool 

- $ - $ 

364 365 
SSA • ID£A B SSA • IDEA B 

Formula 

ARP Act 

- $ 

Preschool 

ARP Act 

626,318 2,267 88,895 9,81i5 - --------------626,318 2,267 88,895 9,845 

19,750 

519,710 
77,220 

9,638 

626,318 

- $ 

480 

1,787 

2.267 

• $ 

69,351 

10,734 

8,810 

88,895 

- $ 

9,845 

9,845 



386 410 429 437 

Regional Day State Other State SSA 
School for Instructional Special Special 
the Deaf Materials Revenue Funds Education 

$ - $ - $ - $ 1,623,034 $ 
8,943 208, 173 7, 175 81,378 

8,943 208,173 7,175 1,704,412 

8,943 183,373 832,663 

24,800 6,054 
410,238 

444. 172 

925 

2,180 
914 

7, 175 

1,245 
21 

6,000 

8,943 208,173 7.175 1,704,412 

$ • $ • $ - $ - $ 

68 

461 Total 
Campus Nonmajor 
Activity Special 
Funds Revenue Funds 

299,733 $ 

299,733 

85,465 
36,992 

268 

152 
518 

161.876 

285,271 

14,462 

14,462 

302,429 

316,891 $ 

2,705,064 $ 
362,239 

S,117,942 

8, ISS,245 

3,846,994 
122.427 
140, 125 
437,359 

9,770 
1,057,453 

98,495 
38,024 

1,845,438 
161,876 

2, 180 
914 

7, 175 
52,423 

3,972 
39 

15,638 

7,840,302 

344,943 

344,943 

1,547,711 

1,892,654 $ 

EXI·IIBIT H-2 (Cont'd) 

S99 

Debt 

Service 
fund 

6,826,000 $ 
36,861 

6,862,861 

4, 170.000 
2.280.173 

6,450, 173 

412,688 

412,688 

2, 141 ,397 

2,554,085 $ 

690 

Local 
Capital 

Projects Pund 

5,538 

5,538 

122,314 

122,314 

(1 16,776) 

( 116,776) 

151 ,322 

34,546 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTR1CT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 

5700 Total Local and lntennediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXt~ENDlTURES: 

Current: 
00 11 Instruction 
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 
0013 Curriculum and Instructional Staff Development 
002 1 Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
0031 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 Health Services 
003S Food Services 
0036 ExtracuITicular Activities 
0041 General Administration 
0051 Facilities Maintenance and Operations 
oosz Security and Monitoring Services 
0061 Community Services 

Debt Service: 
007 l PrincipaI on Long-Term Liabilities 
0072 Interest on Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Capital Outlay: 
0081 Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

Intergovernmental: 
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 

6030 Total Expenditures 

11 00 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
79 15 Transfers In 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0100 Fund Balance- July 1 (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance. June 30 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

69 

698 

Capitol 
Projects-

201 R Bond 

7.267 $ 

7,267 

111,605 

180,815 

292,420 

Total Total 

Nonrnnjor Non maj or 
Capital Governmental 

Project Funds Funds 

12,805 $ 9,543,869 
399,100 

5,117,942 

12.805 15,060,911 

303,129 

414. 734 

3,846,994 
122,427 
140, 125 
437,359 

9,770 
1,057,453 

98.495 
38,024 

1,845,438 
161 ,876 

2,180 
914 

11 8,780 
52,423 

<l,173,972 

2,280,212 

303, 129 

15,638 

14,705,209 - -----------
(285, 153) (40 1.929) 355,702 

147,120 
-----

147, 120 147, 120 ___ _;__ 

(138,033) (254,809) 502,822 

138,033 289,355 3,978,463 

• $ 34,546 $ 4,481,285 

EXHIBIT H-2 



T.E.A REQUIRED SCHEDULES 



Lust IO Yenrs 

2014 and prior years 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

202 1 

2022 

2023 (School year under audit) 

IOOO TOTALS 

FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULEOF DELrNQUENTTAXES RECEIVABLE 

f'ISCAL YEAR GNDED JUNE 30, 2023 

( I) (2) 

Ta;,,; Rates 

Maintenance Debt Service 

Various Vario us 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0. 106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

0.970000 0. 106200 

0.949100 0. 106200 

0.872000 0. 106200 

0.854600 0. 106200 

9000 Po1tion of Row l000 for Taxes Paid into Tax Increment Zone 
(See Footnote) 

8000 Total Taxes Refunded Under Sect ion 26. 11 5, Tax Code 

70 

(3) 

Assessed/ App ruised 
Volue for School 

Ta;,,; Purposes 

$ 27,482,089,979 

2,602,405,775 

2,725,936,050 

2,963,946,519 

3,340,446,344 

3,623,776,653 

4, 140,083,720 

4.283.686,675 

5,253,444.490 

6,137,129.583 



EXHlBIT J-1 

(10) (20) (31) (32) (40) (50) 

13eginning Cut·rent Entire Ending 

1Jala11ce Year's M ai11tena11ce Debt Service Year's Balance 

7/1/2022 Total Levy Colleclions Collections Adjustments 6/30/2023 

$ 186,154 $ . $ 8,913 $ $ $ 177,241 

22,533 1,645 167 20,721 

25,344 1,872 190 23,282 

32,723 3,675 373 28,675 

45,005 11 ,687 1,184 32,134 

71 ,124 18.777 1,901 (1,885) 48,561 

143,213 54,621 5,933 19,468 102,127 

295,576 107,292 11.822 15,717 192,179 

755.218 421,255 50.833 (3,261) 279,869 

58,916,444 51,441 ,112 6,388,1 11 (57,463) 1,029,758 

$ 1,576,890 $ 58,916,444 $ 52,070,849 $ 6,460,5 14 $ (27,424) $ 1,934,547 

$ 

$ 

71 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL· CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

0035 Food Services 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 

0100 Fund Balance - July I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance. June 30 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

675,000 $ 913,545 
72,300 72,300 

1,075.000 1,341 ,835 

1,822,300 2,327,680 

2,382,300 2,382,300 

2,382,300 2,382,300 

(560,000) (54,620) 

1,232,207 1,232,207 

672,207 $ 1.1 77,587 

72 

Actual Amounts 
(GAAP BASIS) 

$ 781 ,692 
56,302 

1.314,220 

2, 152,214 

1,821,733 

1,821,733 

330,481 

1.232,207 

$ 1,562,688 

EXHIBIT J-2 

Vurinnce With 
Final Budget 
Positive or 
(Negative) 

$ (131,853) 
(15,998) 
(27.615) 

(175,466) 

560,567 

560,567 -----
385.101 

$ 385, 101 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES1 EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL- DEBT SERVICE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Data Actual Amounts 

Control Budgclcd Amounts 
(GAAP BASIS) 

Codes 
Original Finill 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intennediate Sources $ 6, 161.868 $ 6,862, 182 $ 6,826,000 
5800 State Program Revenues 36,861 36,861 

5020 Total Revenues 6, I 61,868 6,899,043 6,862,861 

EXPENDITURES: 
Debt Service: 

0071 Principal on Long-Term Liabilities 5,512,000 4, 170,000 4, 170,000 
0072 Interest on Long-Term Liabilities 641 ,868 2,280, 174 2,280, 173 
0073 Bond Issuance Cost and Fees 8,000 8,000 

6030 Total Expenditures 6, 161 ,868 6.458, 174 6,450. 173 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 440,869 412,688 

0100 Fund Balance - July I (Beginning) 2. 141,397 2. 141 ,397 2, 141.397 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) $ 2,14 1,397 $ 2,582,266 $ 2,554,085 

73 

EXHIBIT J-3 

Variance With 
Finni Budget 
Positive or 
(Negative) 

$ (36.182) 

(36,182) 
- ----

I 
8.000 

8,001 

(28, 18 I) 

$ (28. 181) 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

USE OF FUNDS REPORT- SELECT STATE ALLOTMENT PROGRAMS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Section A: Compensatory Education Programs 

API Did your LEA expend any state compensatory education program state allotment funds 
during the district's fiscal year? 

AP2 Does the LEA have written policies and procedures for its state compensatory education 
program? 

AP3 List the total state allotment funds received for state compensatory education programs 
during the district's fiscal year. 

AP4 List the achtal direct program expenditures for state compensatory education programs 
during the LEA's fiscal year. 

Section B: Bilingual Education Programs 

AP5 Did your LEA expend any bilingual education program state allotment funds during the 

EXHIBIT J-4 

Yes 

Yes 

2,752,750 

1,466,337 

LEA's fiscal year? Yes 

AP6 Does the LEA have written policies and procedures for its bilingual education program? 

AP7 List the total state allotment funds received for bilingual education programs during the 
LEA's fiscal year. 

AP8 List the actual direct program expenditures for bilingual education programs during the 
LEA's fiscal year. 

74 

Yes 

372,393 

206,798 



REPORTS ON INTERNAL CONTROLS, COMPLIANCE AND 
FEDERAL AW ARDS 



NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

INOEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITTNG STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
fredericksburg Independent School District 
Fredericksburg, Texas 78624 

Members of the Board; 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and !he standards 
applicable to finuncial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the governmental activities, each 1najor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Fredericksburg Independent School District. as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, nnd !he relatc:d notes 10 the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise Fredericksburg Independent School District's basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated November I 0, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Fredericksburg Independent School District's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 11nancial statements, but no! for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow manugemcnt or employees, in ihe 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct. misstatements on a tirnely basis. A material 
weakness is a dcficieney, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there ls a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of dellciencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
wcakm:ss, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph oflhis section and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. Mowever, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies muy exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Fredericksburg Independent School District's financial statements nre free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracls. and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination offinancial statement amounts. 
However, providing en opinion on compliance wilh those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do no! 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matters that arc required to he 
reported under Govern111e111 Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
cosls as item 2023-00 I. 
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Fredericl<sburg Independent School District's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards require the auditor to petform limited procedures on the Fredericksburg Independent School 
District's response to the findings ldentif1ed in our nudit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. The Fredericksburg Independent School District's rcspon~c was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on ihe response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely 10 describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance, This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in nccordance with Ciovern1111ml A11diti11g Sta11dards in considering the entity 's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~u~,i Qt- 8&u./.e,,, ?. {! 
NEPFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C 
fredericksburg, Texas 

November 1 (), 2023 
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NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

lNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUI DANCE 

Board ofTrustees 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Fredericksburg, Texas 78624 

Members of the Board: 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Rc1>ort on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opi11io11 011 Eacl, Major F11deral Program 

We have audited Fredericksburg Independent School Disu·ict's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified 
as subject to audit in the 0MB Comp/la;u:I! S11pple1mm/ that could have a direct and rn11terial effect on each of Fredericksburg 
Independent School District's mnjor federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Fredericksburg Independent School 
District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, Fredericksburg Independent School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and matei'ial effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2023. 

Basis for Opi11io11 011 Each Major Fer/emf Progrnm 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americfl: 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by ihe Comptroller General of the 
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Admfnislra/ive 
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audi/ Requirements/or Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilitic:s under those 
standards and the Uniform Guidance arc further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of 
our report. 

We are required to be independent of Fredericksburg Independent School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit docs not provide a 
legal determination of Fredericksburg Independent School District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above. 

Respomibilitie.f of Ma1u1ge111,mt for Compfl(mce 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions 
of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Fredericksburg Independent School District's federal programs. 

Atulitor's Respo11sibifities for the Audit of Complia11ce 

Our objectives ore to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Fredericksburg Independent School District's 
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compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high lc:vcl of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemment Auditing Sta11da1·ds, 
and the Unifol'm Guidance will always detect material noncompllance when ii exists. The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgcry, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above is considered material if there is a substanlial likellhood that, individually or in the aggregate, ii would innuence the judgment 
rrwde by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Predericksburg Independent School District's compliance with the 
requi rements of each major federnl program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted a11diting standards, Governmeill A11dilfngStand,irds, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 's compliance with lhc compliance requirements referred to f1bovc and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control over compliance relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal 
control over co111pliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opi11ion 011 

the effectiveness of Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

We arc required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during 
the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance n:quiremcnl of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement or a federal program wi ll not be 
prevented, or de!ccled and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
that is less severe than a mulerial weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough lo merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that 
might be material weaknesses or signilicanl deflciencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitotions, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were llOt 
identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely 10 describe the scopi: of our testing of intemal control over 
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose . 

.?l'#,u/4,y 9'- 8&4./.m, ?. Cl 

NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 
Fredericksburg, Texas 

November I 0, 2023 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

I. Summary of the Auditor's Results: 
I. Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting 

Material Weakness(es) identified 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
considered to be material weakness 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

II. Federal and State Awards 
Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting 

Material Weakness(es) identified 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
considered to be material weakness 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.5 I 6(a) of Uniform 
Guidance? 

Identification of major federal program: 

Unmodified 

Yes _X_No 

Yes _X_No 

Yes __ X_No 

Unmodified 

Yes _X_No 

Yes _X __ No 

Unmodified 

Yes ___lL_ No 

Assistance Listing Number 
84.425 

Name of the Federal Program or Cluster 

10.553, 10.555 and 10.559 

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 

ChUd Nutrition Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B federal programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _X __ Yes No 

II. Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which Are Required to be Reported in Accordance 
with Generally Accepted Govemment Auditing Standards. 

III. 

2023-001 
Type of Finding: 
Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 
Questioned Costs: 
Recommendation: 

Noncompliance 
Districts are not allowed to have a fund balance in the food service fund in excess 
of three months' average expenditures for food operations in accordance with 
TEA's guidance and NSLP Handbook: Administrator's Reference Manual, 
Section 16. 
The District's fund balance in the food service fund was $1,562,688 which is in 
excess of three months' average expenditures ($493,284). 
The District failed to monitor the excess amount of fund balance in the food 
service fund. 
The District was not compliant with the state's excess fund balance requirements. 
None 
We recommend the District monitor the food service fund balance and budget 
adequate amounts in 2023-24 to meet compliance requirements. 

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 

-None-
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FREDERICKSBURG fNDEPENDcNT SCHOOi, DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS/CORRECllVE ACTION PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

STATEMENT OF CORRECTIVE. ACTION· 
CURRENT YEAR DISCLOSURES 

At yellr end, the School Nutrition Program fund balance docs not fall within the 
allowable level. As such, FISD has taken steps to reduce its net cnsh resources with a 
plan to improve the quality of the school nutrition program by purchasing needed 
supplies and equipment during 2023-2024. 

Contact: Jill Minshew, CFO 

(830) 997-9551 

6stimnted Completion Dale: June 30. 2024 

STATl~M ENT OF CORRECTIVE ACTION -
PRIOR YEAR DISCLOSURES 

Al year end, the School Nutrition Program fund balance does not fall with in the 
nllownble level. As such, FISD hlls taken steps to reduce its net cash resoun:es with n 
plan to improve the quality of the school nutrition program by purchasing needed 
supplies and equipment during 2022-2023. Specifically, we budgeted a deficit for the 
current budget year in order to purchase new serving lines at FES that nre needed and 
are looking at a few other items - breakfast carts, tables, etc. 

Contact: Jill Minshew, CFO 
(830) 997-9551 

The District was still not compliant In FY 202 3 and plans to become compliant by the 
end of fiscal year 2024. 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

(I) 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATfON 
Pnssed Through Texas Education Aseocv 
ESEA, Title I, Part A. - lmproving Basic Programs 
ESEA, Title I, Part A• Improving Basic Programs 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.010 

*IDEA· Part B, Formula 
•SSA - IDEA - Part B. Formula 
*SSA - IDEA - Part B, Formula 
~COY ID 19 -SSA - IDEA,B,Formula - ARP 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.027 

*SSA - IDEA - Part 8 , Preschool 
•COYID 19 -SSA· 1O1:::A,B, l)mchool • AR,P 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84, 173 

Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 

Career and Technical - Basic Grant 

Title Ill, Pnrt A - English Langunge Acquisition 
Title Ill, Part A - English Language Acquisition 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.365 

ESEA, Title II. Part. A, Teacher Principal Trnining 
ESEA. Title II, Part A., Teacher Principal Training 

·rota! Assistance Listing Number 84.367 

COVID 19 - ESSER II - School Emergency Relief 
COYID 19 - ESSER III - School Emergengy Relief 
COVID 19 - ARP Education for Homeless Children 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.425 

Title IV. Part A, Subpart I 
Title IV, Part A, Subpart 1 

Total Assistance Usting Nu!llber 84.424 

Grants for State Assessments and Related Activities 
1·ot.al Passed Through Texas Education Agency 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
Passed Throueh Texas Education Agencv 
Head Start 

Total Passed Through Texas Education Agency 

(2) (3) 

Federal Pass-Through 

Assistance Entity Identifying 
Listing No. Number 

84.0I0A 22610101086901 
84.0IOA 23610101086901 

84.027 
84.027 
84,027 
84.027X 

2366000108690 16600 
226600010869016600 
236600010869016600 
225350020869015350 

84,173 236610010869016610 
84.173X 225360020869015630 

84,048 23420006086901 

84.365A 22671001086901 
84.365A 23671001086901 

84.367A 22694S01086901 
84.367 A 2369450108690 1 

84.425D 2152 1001086901 
84.425D 21528001086901 
84.425W 21533002086901 

84.424 22680101086901 
84.424 23680101086901 

84,369 69552102 

93.600 06-Cf-l I 0076-01-3865 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRIClJL TURE 
Passed Through the Texas Department of Agricullute 
•School Breakfast Program 

*National School Lunch Program - Cash Assistance 
•National School Lunch Prog. - Non-Cash Assistance 
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10.553 

10,555 
10.555 

EXHIBIT K-1 (Cont'd) 

(4) 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 9,393 
568,9 13 
578,306 

286,597 
17,909 

608.408 
88,896 

1,001 ,810 

2,267 
9,845 

12, 112 

1,013,922 

36,142 

1.600 
53,123 
54,723 

595 
106,016 
106,611 

478,727 
1,076,870 

3.505 
1,559. 102 

874 
47,577 
48,451 

11,632 

3,408,889 

3,408,889 

372,000 

372.000 

372,000 

242,228 

810,441 
151 ,380 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES or FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

(I) 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE 

Supply Chain Assistance 
Supply Chain Assistance 

Total Assistance Listing Number I 0.555 

*Summer Feeding Program • Cash Assistance 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 

State Administrative Expenses for Child Nutrition 
Pandemic EBT Administrative Costs 

Total Passe<;! Thl'Ough the Texas Department of Agriculture 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
+clustered Programs 

(2) 

Federal 
Assistance 
Listing No. 

10.555 
10.555 

10.559 

10.560 
10.649 

See Accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of r ederal Awards 
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(3) 

Pass. Through 
Entity ldentifying 

Number 

226TX400N8903 
236TX400N8903 

226TX3 12N2533 
226TX I 09S9009 

EXHIBIT K-1 

(4) 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 

74,387 
30,231 

1,066,439 

22,832 

1,331,499 

2,420 
3,135 

1,337,054 

1,337,054 

5, 117,943 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Aasjs of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes tbe federal award activity of ihe Fredericksburg Independent 
School District under programs or the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Pedera/ f~egitla//ons Part 200, Uniform ,4.dminis/ralive 
Requirements, Cos/ Principles, and Audit Requirements/or Federal Awards (Unifom1 Guidance). 

Summm:y of Significant Accountinu Policies 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. The Governmental Fund 
Types are accounted for using a current financial rt:sources measurement f:ocus. All federal expenditures were accounted for in the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds, components of the Governmental Fund type. Such expenditures are recognized following 
the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures arc not allowed or arc limited as lo 
reimbursement. No federal financial ilSsist.ince has been provided to n subrecipient. 

Fedeml grants are considered to be earned to the c:xlent of expenditures made under the provisions ofihe grant. 

School healih and related services revenues are considered earned income at the local government level and thus are not included in the 
Schedule orExpenditures ofFederal AwHrds. The following is a reconciliation ofFcderal Revenues on Exhibit c.3 to the Schedule of 
expenditures of Federal Awards: 

Total expenditures of federal awards per Exhibit K-1 
General Fund - federal revenue 
Indirect Costs 
Navy-JR OTC 
SHARS 
Total fcd1:ral revenues per Exhibit C-3 

Ind ireci Cost Rate 

$ 5,117,943 

231 ,141 
67,389 

569,740 
$ 51986,213 

The District has elected not to use the I 0-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Unifonn Guidance. Indirect cost 
reimburSement for federal programs for this ti seal year w,1s received in the amount of $231,141 . 

Food Dgnation 

Nonmonetary assistance is rep011ed in this schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and disbursed. 
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November 13, 2023 

Board of Trustees 

NEFFENDORF & BLOCl<ER, P.C. 

Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Fredericksburg, TX 78624 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental act1v1t1es, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Fredericksburg Independent School District for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standard1· and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our 
letter to you dated April 6, 2023. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by Fredericksburg Independent School District are described in Note I to the financial statements. 
GASB Statement No. 96 Subscriprion·Based Information Technology Arrangements was adopted and the 
application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2023. We noted no transactions 
entered into by Fredericksburg Independent School District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral pa1t of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

DiJ.f/culties Enco1mtered in Pe,j'orming the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulti.es in dealing with management in perfom1ing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, ocher 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has 
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and 
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, repo11ing, or auditing matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's 
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated November 13, 2023. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to Fredericksburg Independent School District's financial statements or a detennination of the type of 
auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to detennine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were 
no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as Fredericksburg Independent School District's auditors. However, 
these discussions occu1Ted in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison 
infom1ation, the TRS net pension liability schedules and the TRS OPEB Liability schedules, which are required 
supplementary information (RSI) thal supplement~ Lhe basic financial statements. Our procedures cousisted or 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and the Texas Education Agency required Exhibits, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary infonnation, we made ce1tain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to detennine that the 
infonnation complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary infonnation to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees and management of Fredericksburg 
Independent School District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Very truly yours, 

~Jpuk/ ¥ Zi&ek, ?.(! 
NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 
Fredericksburg, Texas 
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